
 

1 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
Monday, February 3, 2014 – 6:00 P.M.  

Council Chamber 
 
 

  
The City Council of the City of Newport will hold a City Council meeting on Monday, February 3, 2014, 
at 6:00 P.M. The City Council Meeting will be held in the Council Chambers, City Hall, located at 169 
S.W. Coast Highway, Newport, Oregon 97365. A copy of the agenda follows. 
 
The meeting location is accessible to persons with disabilities. A request for an interpreter for the 
hearing impaired, or for other accommodations for persons with disabilities, should be made at least 48 
hours in advance of the meeting to Peggy Hawker, City Recorder at 541.574.0613. 
 
The City Council reserves the right to add or delete items as needed, change the order of the agenda, 
and discuss any other business deemed necessary at the time of the meeting. 

 
 
Anyone wishing to speak at a Public Hearing or on an agenda item should complete a Public Comment 
Form and give it to the City Recorder. Public Comment Forms are located at the entrance to the City 
Council Chamber. Anyone commenting on a subject not on the agenda will be called upon during the 
Public Comment section of the agenda. Comments pertaining to specific agenda items will be taken at 
the time the matter is discussed by the City Council.  
 

I. Pledge of Allegiance 
 

II. Call to Order and Roll Call   
 
III. Public Comment 

This is an opportunity for members of the audience to bring to the Council’s attention any item 
not listed on the Agenda. Comments will be limited to three (3) minutes per person with a 
maximum of 15 minutes for all items. Speakers may not yield their time to others. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

2 
 

IV. Consent Calendar 
The consent calendar consists of items of a repeating or routine nature considered under a single 
action. Any Councilor may have an item on the consent agenda removed and considered 
separately on request. 
 

A. Approval of Minutes from the City Council Work Session and Regular Meeting of January 
21, 2014, and the Joint City Council Meeting with the Lincoln County Commissioners of 
January 15, 2014 (Hawker) 

B. Mayoral Committee Appointments  
1. Confirm the Mayor’s Appointment of Martha E. Adcox to the Senior Citizen 

Advisory Committee for a Term Expiring 12/31/2015 
2. Confirm the Mayor’s Appointment of Fred Springsteen to the Audit Committee for 

a Term Expiring 12/31/2015 
 

V. Public Hearing 
This is an opportunity for members of the audience to provide testimony/comments on the specific 
issue being considered by the City Council. Comments will be limited to three (3) minutes per 
person. Speakers may not yield their time to other. 
 

A. Public Hearing and Possible Adoption of Ordinance No. 2062 – Amending Ordinance No. 
1922, as Amended by Ordinance No. 1931, Relating to the 2007 Annexation of 102.23 
Acres in South Beach 

 
VI. Communications 
 

A. Salmon for Oregon - Spring Chinook Project Update - Jim Wright 
 

VII. City Manager Report 
 

A. Schedule Public Forum Date for the Curbside Compostables Program 
B. Approval of ODOT Right-of-Way Services Agreement and Authorization of Additional 

Funding for the Highway 101 Pedestrian Safety Project 
C. Response to Bicycle\Pedestrian Advisory Committee Recommendations 
D. Annual Update on Use of Force as Required by SB111 
E. Revised Budget Schedule 

 
VIII. Report from Mayor and Council 

 
IX. Public Comment 

This is an additional opportunity for members of the audience to provide public comment. 
Comments will be limited to three (5) minutes per person with a maximum of 15 minutes for all 
items. Speakers may not yield their time to others. 
 

X. Adjournment 
 
 



 

1 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CITY MANGER’S REPORT AND RECOMENDATIONS 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
Monday, February 3, 2014   

Council Chamber 
  

This report is an executive summary of this agenda packet with recommended actions for the City 
Council. Detailed departmental reports, minutes and other supporting materials are provided within the 
full agenda packet where referenced. 
 

AGENDA ITEMS 
 

IV. Consent Calendar 
Background:  
The consent calendar consisted items of a repeating or routine nature considered under a single 
action. The recommended actions on the consent calendar are as follows:  

 
A. Approve the Minutes from the Work Session and Regular City Council Meeting of January 

21, 2014, and the Joint City Council Meeting with Lincoln County Commissioners on 
January 15, 2014 

B. Confirm the Mayor’s Appointments to the Following Committees: 
1. Confirm the Mayor’s appointment of Martha E. Adcox to the Senior Citizen Advisory 

Committee for a Term Expiring 12/31/2015; 
2. Confirm the Mayor’s Appointment of Fred Springsteen to the Audit Committee for a 

Term Expiring 12/31/2015 
 

Recommended Action: 
I recommend that a motion be made for approval of the consent calendar for the February 3, 2004 
City Council meeting. 
 
Fiscal Effects: 
None 
 
Alternatives: 
Any Councilor may have an item on the consent calendar removed and considered separately 
upon request. 
 
Agenda Packet Reports: 
Minutes from the City Council work session and regular meeting of January 21, 2014, and the 
joint City Council meeting with the Lincoln County Commissioners; application from Martha Adcox 
to serve on the Senior Citizen Advisory Committee; and application from Fred Springsteen to 
serve on the Audit Committee are included in the full packet.  



 

2 
 

 
 
 
 

V. Public Hearing 
Agenda Item: V.A. 
Public Hearing and possible adoption of Ordinance No. 2062 - amending Ordinance No. 1922, 
as amended by Ordinance No.1931, relating to the 2007 annexation of 102.23 acres in South 
Beach 
 
Background: 
On June 18, 2007, the Newport City Council adopted Ordinance No. 1922 which provided for the 
annexation and zoning of 102.23 acres of property in South Beach. This property included a site 
for the Oregon Coast Community College along with Phase 1 of the Wilder Planned Development 
and Landwaves, Inc. The Oregon Department of Transportation appealed the City of Newport’s 
decision which resulted in the affected parties entering into a settlement agreement which 
included making upgrades to the intersection of SE 40th Street and US 101 and imposed “trip cap” 
of 180 peak hour vehicle trips attributed to new development at this improved intersection. These 
provisions were incorporated in Ordinance No. 1931 which amended the original annexation 
Ordinance (No. 1922). 
 
Since that time, the City has extended the duration of the South Beach Urban Renewal Plan to 
create a funding source for right-of-way and intersection improvements including updating its 
Transportation System Plan. Lincoln County adopted the complementary changes to its 
Transportation System Plan, and the State of Oregon agreed to allow more congestion on US 
101 in South Beach through utilization of alternative mobility targets which were recently 
approved by the Oregon Transportation Commission through an amendment on 12/18/13. 
 
On December 10, 2013, Bonnie Serkin, Chief Operating Officer for Landwaves, Inc., submitted a 
letter to the City asking that the limitations included on Ordinance No. 1931 be eliminated based 
on the subsequent actions. The City Council initiated amendments to the land use ordinance on 
12/16/13 to make these necessary changes. Required notice has been placed with the 
Department of Land Conservation and Development for the Planning Commission and City 
Council hearings, in the Newport News–Times on January 3, 2014, and on January 24, 2014 
respectively. Ordinance No. 2062 will repeal sections 3(B), 3(C), and 3(D) of Ordinance No. 1922 
eliminating the reference to intersection improvements to S.E. 40th Street and US 101, eliminating 
the prohibition for the City to issue building permits for land uses in the annexed territory which 
would generate more than 180 peak hour trips, utilizing instead the provisions in the City of 
Newport Transportation System Plan, Lincoln County Transportation System Plan and the State 
of Oregon Highway Plan, which places new, more flexible, mobility targets for US 101 and 
eliminating the parameters on how the analysis would be performed to establish compliance with 
the previously established quota of 180 peak hour trips. 
 
Recommended Action: 
I recommend that the Mayor conduct a public hearing on Ordinance No. 2062 which repeals 
sections 3(B), 3(C), and 3(D) of Ordinance No. 1922, as amended by Ordinance No. 1931, 
removing references to the improvements of the S.E. 40th Street intersection with US 101; the 
imposed trip cap of 180 peak hour vehicle trips; and the elimination of the parameters to establish 
compliance with the 180 peak hour trip limitations, as currently required.  



 

3 
 

 
I further recommend that the City Council approve, by voice vote, a motion for reading Ordinance 
No. 2062 by title only, an ordinance amending Ordinance No. 1922, as amended by Ordinance 
No.1931, relating to the 2007 Annexation of 102.23 acres in South Beach. 
 
I further recommend that the City Council adopt Ordinance No. 2062 by roll call vote, an ordinance 
amending Ordinance No. 1922, as amended by Ordinance No.1931, relating to the 2007 
Annexation of 102.23 acres in South Beach. 
 
Fiscal Effects: 
None directly by this action. Elimination of the trip cap of 180 peak hour vehicle trips will allow 
future developments to utilize the less restrictive methodologies that have since been adopted by 
the City of Newport, Lincoln County, and the Oregon Department of Transportation regarding 
traffic flow and mobility in South Beach. 

 
Alternatives: 
None recommended. 

 
Agenda Packet Reports: 
See report by D. Tokos which includes proposed Ordinance No. 2062 and other supporting 
material. 

 
 

VI. Communications 
Agenda Item: VI.A. 
Salmon for Oregon – Spring Chinook project update by Jim Wright 
 
Background: 
On May 21, 20 2012, James Wright, Executive Director for Salmon for Oregon Association (SFO) 
and David Landkamer, OSU Sea Grant specialist, presented efforts to  create a spring salmon 
fishery in Yaquina Bay to the City Council. This program included the creation of net pen rearing 
and release of hatchery stocks of Chinook salmon in Yaquina Bay, which would in time create a 
spring salmon fishery as the salmon return to the location in which they were reared. This would 
have a positive economic impact on those communities that would be hosting these types of 
facilities through an increase in tourism, lodging, guide services, charters, sport and commercial 
fishing, and other impacts on the local community. 
 
Since that time, Salmon for Oregon has been working with the Oregon Department of Fish and 
Wildlife to move this project forward. In addition, Salmon for Oregon has since been granted 
501(c)(3) status from the IRS as a public charitable organization. In January of this year, SFO 
held an open house in Newport where over 200 interested parties participated in a discussion 
about the proposal for a spring Chinook project for Yaquina Bay. Furthermore, SFO has obtained 
significant contributions from various organizations and individuals to offset costs that would be 
necessary to go forward with this initiative. Jim Wright is requesting that the City Council consider 
a commitment of $5,000 toward the efforts of the SFO to bring this project to final fruition. 
 
In reviewing the City’s policy for tourism and related projects, the City has relied on two sources 
of funds relating to these types of requests. For infrastructure costs (which would probably be 
appropriate for the costs to develop the required net pen rearing facility), the City Council has 



 

4 
 

utilized the Tourism Facilities Grant Program which was discussed at the last City Council 
meeting. Based on this discussion, the Council has requested an appropriation amendment to be 
made to secure the original final commitment of $100,000 in grant funding for infrastructure 
improvements relating to tourism within the City of Newport. The second source of funds that are 
provided on a grant basis are the Tourism Marketing Grant Funds. The purpose of this grant 
program is to promote tourism and increase stays in lodging establishments within the City of 
Newport with priority given to events and activities scheduled for the off season (September 15 
through June 15). In both cases, there is a separate review process for granting the funds which 
SFO could be afforded. I’m anticipating a budget amendment will be brought before the City 
Council at the second meeting February to address the Tourism Facilities Grant funds so that this 
application process could be reinitiated for a final round. This potentially could be funded yet in 
this fiscal year. I am certainly open to any other suggestions from Council on how to proceed with 
this request. 
 
Jim Wright will give an overview of their progress and request for the City Council’s consideration. 
 
Recommended Action: 
If the Council would like to support this effort I would recommend that the City Council direct SFO 
to one of our appropriate grant sources for consideration of possible funding. 
 
Fiscal Effects: 
None by this action. 
 
Alternatives: 
Defer this issue to the July 1, 2014 fiscal year or as suggested by the City Council. 
 
Agenda Packet Reports: 
See attached email from Jim Wright dated January 29, 2014, with supporting materials attached. 

 
 

VII. City Manager Report 
Agenda Item: VII.A. 
Schedule a public forum regarding Curbside Compostables Program through the City’s solid 
waste agreement with Thompson Sanitary Service. 
 
Background: 
On April 1, 2013, the City Council assigned Councilors Mark Saelens and David Allen to discuss 
possible recycling opportunities with Thompson’s Sanitary Service for city residents. A series of 
meetings were held with a report being provided to the City Council at the November 18, 2013 
meeting regarding the possibilities of including a provision for the collection of compostable waste 
from residential customers in the City of Newport. This would include various forms of yard, 
garden, and food waste which would be placed in containers separate from the recycling and 
household waste containers. The materials would be collected curbside and transported to a 
composting facility. This would reduce the amount of compostable waste entering landfill; reduce 
the volume of household refuse that would be collected at homes and transported to landfills; and 
provide additional service to property owners who must deal with yard waste on their own. 
Thompson’s Sanitary Service will be giving the City Council and overview of the preliminary 
findings that resulted from a survey on opinions about participating in this type of program. There 
would be additional costs for the compostable component of the waste stream. In some cases, 



 

5 
 

this may reduce the cost to property owners who are currently placing this compostable waste in 
their regular garbage process potentially offsetting a portion of these expenses. Councilors 
Saelens and Allen are recommending that the City Council proceed with a public forum before 
the Newport City Council at the February 18, 2014 City Council meeting at which representatives 
from Thompson’s Sanitary Service will make a PowerPoint presentation outlining how this type 
of program could work within the City of Newport. 
 
Recommended Action: 
I recommend that the City Council schedule a public forum at the February 18, 2014 City Council 
meeting at 6:00 P.M. 
 
Fiscal Effects: 
None by scheduling hearing. 
 
Alternatives: 
None recommended. 
 
Agenda Packet Reports: 
Compostables Timeline 2013 

 
 
Agenda Item: VII.B. 
Approval of ODOT Right-of-Way Services Agreement and Authorization of Additional Funding 
For Highway 101 Pedestrian Safety Project. 
 
Background: 
In July 2012, the City entered into an agreement with the Oregon Department of Transportation 
(ODOT) to fund eight pedestrian crossing improvements on Highway 101 between Bayley Street 
to the south, and 15th Street to the north. The original project was estimated by ODOT to cost 
$502,000 with the Flexible Funds Program 2011 providing $450,000 and the City providing 
$52,000. As the design process has proceeded, ODOT has determined that additional right-of-
way will be required as part of this project. With this and other factors, the revised project cost 
estimate is $852,000 which results in a funding shortfall of $350,000 for this project. 
 
In order to proceed with this project, it is necessary for the City Council to authorize an ODOT 
right-of-way services agreement which requires authorization of additional funding for this project. 
Since the City did not feel it should bear the entire cost of this additional funding, we have held 
off on presenting this agreement to the Council for approval. Since that time, several meetings 
with ODOT have occurred and a plan has been put together on addressing the balance of the 
funds necessary to complete this project. The ODOT Bike and Pedestrian Program is willing to 
contribute an additional $100,000 toward this project as long as the scope of the project remains 
the same. In addition, ODOT staff is presenting a request to the Region 5 Area Managers to 
provide up to $100,000 toward meeting the financial needs. This leaves a shortfall of $150,000 
which, if approved by the City Council, would need to be appropriated in the FY 14/15 budget for 
construction that would likely occur in early winter of 2015. This would bring the City’s commitment 
for these eight pedestrian crossing improvements on Highway 101 to $202,000 toward the revised 
project cost estimate of $852,000. 
 



 

6 
 

In order to proceed, it is necessary that the City Council authorize the intergovernmental 
agreement for right-of-way services as provided by ODOT and commit the additional funding in 
order to proceed with this project. Please note that it would be my intent not to execute the 
agreement until the funding commitments from ODOT are complete.  
 
Recommended Action: 
I recommend that the City Council approve the intergovernmental agreement for right-of-way 
services for US 101 pedestrian safety improvements (ODOT Agreement No. 29396) authorizing 
the Mayor and City Manager of the City of Newport to execute said agreement. 
 
I further recommend that the City Council certifies that $150,000 in local funding be committed in 
the 2014-15 fiscal year in addition to the $52,000 appropriated in the current fiscal year for the 
US 101 pedestrian safety improvements.  
 
Fiscal Effects: 
The financial commitment would be addressed in the proposed 2014 –15 budget. Please note that 
revenues from the 2013-2014 Infrastructure Fee are estimated at $495,000. This would likely be 
the source of funding to meet this obligation in the proposed budget. 
 
Alternatives: 
Under the current grant agreement, the City would be responsible for paying 100% of the costs 
occurred to date on this project if we terminated the agreement. This expense is estimated to be 
$130,000 which would not be supported by the federal grant program. 
 
Agenda Packet Reports: 
Attached is a staff report from Public Works Director, Tim Gross, with a copy of the 
Intergovernmental Agreement Right Away Services for your review. 

 
 
Agenda Item: VII.C. 
Response to the Bicycle/Pedestrian Advisory Committee regarding project priorities. 
 
Background: 
On December 16, 2013, the Bicycle/Pedestrian Advisory Committee presented various priorities 
for improvement to the City’s bicycle and pedestrian systems to the City Council. Four priorities 
were shared with the City Council which included the continuation of sharrows on city streets; a 
trail from NW Park Street to Oceanview Drive; a trail connecting the Agate Beach State Park trail 
to the sidewalk on Highway 101; and installation of sidewalks on Abbey Street to the Bayfront to 
address the curves and steep slopes at this location. At the work session, I recommended that 
Council refer this matter back to staff with a report being provided to the City Council at the first 
meeting in February as to how we may be able to proceed with the specific recommendations. 
 
It should be noted that the City has focused on many pedestrian and bicycle improvements in 
recent years including the ADA accessible sidewalks along Naterlin Drive; sidewalk connections 
to Yaquina Bay State Park under the north end of the Yaquina Bay Bridge; the completion of 
many missing sidewalk connections including those along SE 9th Street at City Hall, NE 3rd Street 
along the Lincoln County Fairgrounds, and on NW Nye Street along Betty Wheeler Field. 
Furthermore, the sharrows have been installed on 6th Street from NW Coast Street to NE Eads 
Street and along Oceanview Drive from Highway 101 to NW Coast Street. Furthermore, there are 



 

7 
 

a number of current projects in place relating to pedestrian and bicycle safety with perhaps the 
most significant project being the pedestrian crossings on Highway 101. At a staff level, it is our 
recommendation to the City Council that the sharrow program be continued with a like number of 
sharrows to be installed on an annual basis to facilitate the ultimate renewal of sharrows as they 
need to be replaced in the future. As to the three projects, I am recommending that a feasibility 
study and preliminary engineering on those projects be done by the City engineering staff with 
that work being completed by January 2015. This would allow for possible consideration of one 
or more of those projects to be included in the 2015-16 fiscal year budget. 

 
Recommended Action: 
I recommend that the City Council direct the city administration to review the Bicycle/Pedestrian 
Advisory Committee recommendations as part of the upcoming budget process in accordance 
with the report from the City Manager with budget being proposed to continue the sharrow 
program in FY 2014–15 at similar levels to the current fiscal year, and conducting feasibility 
studies on the three remaining projects with those studies being completed by January 2015 for 
possible incorporation in in the 2015-16 budget or later fiscal year budgets. 
 
Fiscal Effects: 
None by this motion. If any projects require appropriations, that would be done as part of the 
budget development for the 2014–15 fiscal year budget. 
 
Alternatives: 
None recommended. 
 
Agenda Packet Reports: 
A report by the City Manager is included. 

 
 
Agenda Item: VII.D. 
Annual Update on Use of Force as Required by SB 111  
 
Background: 
State law requires each county to develop and approve a plan regarding the use of deadly 
physical force by law enforcement agencies. This plan outlines various procedures regarding the 
investigation of the use of deadly force. It also provides for educating the public on the plan. As 
part of this commitment, Police Chief, Mark Miranda will be providing his annual presentation to 
the City Council on this topic. This topic will also include a video as part of his effort to inform and 
educate the City Council and community consistent with the county plan. 
 
Recommended Action: 
No action required. 
 
Fiscal Effects: 
None  
 
Alternatives: 
None 
Agenda Packet Reports: 
None 



 

8 
 

 
 
Agenda Item: 
VII.E. Revised Budget Schedule 
 
Background: 
Included in the agenda packet, is the revised budget schedule incorporating the modification and 
budget dates as requested by the City Council at the January 21, 2013 City Council meeting for 
your use. Please note the following dates in your calendar:  
Monday, February 24, 2014 9 AM - 3 PM - Goal setting meeting with City Council and department 
heads 
Wednesday, March 12, 2014 at 6 PM - Preliminary meeting of the Budget Committee 
Friday, April 18, 2014 - Budget documents are distributed to the Budget Committee 
Wednesday, April 30, 2014 at 6 PM - The first Budget Committee Meeting 
Wednesday, May 7, 2014 at 6 PM - The second Budget Committee Meeting 
Wednesday, May 14, 2014 at 6 PM - The third Budget Committee Meeting  
Monday, June 16, 2014 at 6 PM - Budget public hearing and adoption by City Council 
Please note that Counselor Beemer has indicated that he will request to be excused from the 
February 24, 2014 meeting, as he will be out of town on that date. 
 
Recommended Action: 
No action is required. 
 
Fiscal Effects: 
None 
 
Alternatives: 
None 
 
Agenda Packet Reports: 
City of Newport Budget Calendar detailed for the FY 2014-15. 
 

 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 
  
Spencer Nebel  
City Manager 

 



CC.IV.A 
 

January 21, 2014 
Noon 

Newport, Oregon 
 

 
CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

 
Councilors present: Roumagoux, Saelens, Beemer, Busby, Allen, Sawyer, and Swanson. 

 
Staff present: Nebel, Hawker, Gazewood, Tokos (part of the meeting), and Paige. 
 
Also in attendance was Adam Denlinger, General Manager of the Seal Rock Water 
District. 
 
Media present: Dave Morgan from News Lincoln County, Wyatt Haupt from the Newport 
News-Times; and Larry Coonrod from the Lincoln County Dispatch. 
 
Roumagoux called the meeting to order. 
 
Roll was taken. 
 
1. Roumagoux reported that Swanson and Saelens are unable to attend this evening’s 

meeting. MOTION was made by Sawyer, seconded by Beemer, to excuse Swanson 
and Saelens from this evening’s meeting. The motion carried unanimously in a voice 
vote. 

2. A discussion ensued regarding the potential withdrawal from the Seal Rock Water 
District (SRWD) in South Beach. Tokos reported that the issue was brought to the 
attention of the city by Landwaves. He noted that there is a 2007 urban service 
agreement in which the city’s service boundary was moved to the south. He added 
that this occurred at the time that OCCC was about to be built, and Landwaves and 
the GVR property were about to be annexed. Tokos noted that the urban service 
agreement only dealt with the SRWD revenue bond debt rather than SRWD’s general 
obligation bond debt. He added that when the SRWD updated its master plan in 2010, 
it did not include the properties in the city’s service boundary. Tokos reported that the 
SRWD had general obligation bonds in 2011 and 2012, and property owners in the 
city’s service boundary noticed that they were paying property taxes to both the city 
and the SRWD along with water rates to the city. 

 
 Tokos reported that there are two statutory methods of withdrawal from districts, and 
 one is initiated by the property owner(s) and the other is initiated by the city. He added 
 that the city can only initiate a withdrawal if property is within the city limits, while 
 property owners can initiate a withdrawal regardless of whether the property is in or 
 out of the city limits. He noted that the subject area contains approximately 2,000 
 acres, of which 1,500 are within the city limits, and approximately 300 of those acres 
 are taxable due to the airport and the South Beach State Park. 



 
 Tokos reported that the urban service area agreement could be amended. He noted 
 that the map, designated as an exhibit to the agreement, does not exist, and an 
 amendment could make clear what the new service boundary is. He added that an 
 amendment to the urban service agreement could outline how the general obligation 
 bond debt would be addressed if the withdrawal process was initiated. 
 
 Tokos noted that all property owners in the previous service area would continue to 
 be responsible for the 2004 debt, but that the 2011 and 2012 debt would be borne by 
 taxpayers being served by the SRWD because those in the city’s service boundary 
 would not receive a benefit from the 2011 and 2012 improvements. 
 
 Tokos reported that the SRWD is working with the County Assessor’s office regarding 
 debt and debt responsibilities, and that Council will receive specific information before 
 any action is required of Council. 
 
 Tokos reported that if amendments are made to the urban service agreement, the 

withdrawal process would follow separately for the properties. He reiterated that the 
city can initiate the withdrawal process for properties in the city limits, and the city 
could coordinate the petition of property owners outside the city limits. He added that 
if the city coordinates the petition for owners outside the city limits, there could be one 
petition filed rather than multiple petitions. Tokos noted that he plans to bring the issue 
back for Council consideration within the next month, and that this information would 
include options on how the recovery would be handled. He added that once the 2004 
debt numbers are known, pay back options can be reviewed. 

 
 Gross reported that the city established a separate water rate structure for the 

properties in question. 
 
 Tokos reported that the steps the city can take include: amending the urban service 

agreement; reviewing options as to how the debt can be addressed; and withdrawal. 
It was recommended that the agreement be amended to designate a map and 
determine how the general obligation bond debt would be handled if the properties are 
withdrawn from the SRWD. Allen asked whether the SRWD would commit that the city 
is obligated for the 2004 debt only. Adam Denlinger noted that he appreciates the 
opportunity to resolve this issue. He reviewed the history of the affected properties by 
the SRWD. He added that he is working with the County Assessor’s office and expects 
to have numbers to staff by the end of the week. 

3. A discussion ensued regarding the Transient Room Tax Fund, and particularly 
whether $1,000,000 was ever designated for tourist facilities, and if so, how much of 
that remains. Gazewood distributed a handout and reviewed each of the attachments 
to the document. He reported that Attachment A is an account detail of city-funded 
grants; Attachment B is a complete detail of the budget process; Attachment C is a 
reflection of what the audited schedule will look like; and Attachment D lists revenues 
and expenses, by month, over the course of the fiscal year. Gazewood noted that the 
$100,000 is not included in the budget for allocation purposes. He added that when 
the full $900,000 is obligated, the ending fund balance will change. He concluded that 



when the former City Manager and Finance Director carried the budget forward, they 
did not make provisions for safeguarding the $100,000. 

 
 Gazewood reviewed the transient room tax split between general government and 

tourist related funds. He noted that it would be a policy choice to take monies from 
general government and place them into tourist related accounts. Nebel noted that 
research is being conducted to determine whether the fund allocation should occur 
during this fiscal year or in addressing the upcoming budget. 

 
 Allen noted that there could be $100,000 remaining, and asked what groups could be 

coming forward to request funding. Beemer noted that Council has decided, each year, 
to include an amount for tourism facilities grants, and now Council has to make a 
decision whether to divert money to bring the amount to $100,000 or to allocate the 
remaining amount. Allen added that if there is additional transient room tax revenue 
this year, 46% of the additional revenue could be utilized for tourism facility grants. 
Gazewood noted that budget resolutions approved on December 16 indicate that the 
54% general government factor is reflected in the increased transfer to the General 
Fund. Sawyer stated that he would like to honor the original commitment for funding. 
Saelens noted that part of the fix is laid out on page two of Gazewood’s report in that 
the $50,000 for economic development could be used. He added that if the $50,000 
was moved to the tourist related side, that would increase available grant funding to 
$95,000. Gazewood noted that this action would require a budget resolution. Nebel 
stated that if this is Council’s intent, staff can bring a resolution to a future meeting that 
would make this happen. Allen noted that the 54%/46% split that showed up in the 
document now shows that more than 46% was used for tourism services. 

4. Saelens reported that he had attended a recent VAC re-envisioning meeting. He noted 
that the group is diligently working on draft recommendations to present to Council. 
Nebel stated that he would not mind if potential recommendations from staff were 
included. He agreed to establish a time to meet with Saelens. 

 
Having no further business, the meeting adjourned at 1:16 P.M. 

 



 



CC.IV.A2 
 

January 21, 2014 
6:00 P.M. 

Newport, Oregon 
 
 
 
 The City Council of the City of Newport met on the above date in the Council 
Chambers of the Newport City Hall. On roll call, Roumagoux, Beemer, Allen, Busby, and 
Sawyer were present. Swanson and Saelens were excused. 
 Staff present was City Manager Nebel, City Recorder Hawker, Community 
Development Director Tokos, Public Works Director Gross, Interim Finance Director 
Gazewood, Deputy Fire Chief Murphy, and Police Chief Miranda. 
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 Council, staff, and the audience participated in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
 Roumagoux congratulated the Coast Guard on its rescue of the FV Eclipse and its 
crew. She also noted that the city is proud to be a Coast Guard City. 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

 The consent calendar consisted of the following items: 
 
A. Approval of City Council minutes from the City Council work session and regular 

meeting of January 6, 2014. 
 
 Allen suggested changes to the minutes. MOTION was made by Beemer, seconded 
by Sawyer, to approve the consent calendar with the changes to the minutes as noted 
by Allen. The motion carried unanimously in a voice vote. 
 

OFFICER’S REPORTS 
 

 Mayor’s Report. Roumagoux reported that she attended a recent meeting of the 
Oregon Coastal Zone Management Association. She noted that Senator Roblan and 
Representative Gomberg had been in attendance, and that she had a discussion with 
Mark Ellsworth, from the Governor’s Office regarding whether Lincoln County could be a 
stand-alone zone.  
 Roumagoux appointed Kathy Quinn to the Parks and Recreation Committee. 
MOTION was made by Beemer, seconded by Sawyer, to ratify the Mayor’s appointment. 
The motion carried unanimously in a voice vote. 
 
 City Manager’s Report. Nebel reported that the monthly departmental reports, the 
updated suggestion/concern/complaint form; and the project status report are included 
in the packet. He added that he had spoken to a number of Councilors regarding his 



intent to look at the way reports are provided to the City Council. He noted that he would 
like to remove them from the agenda and provide routine reports to Council on alternate 
weeks. He stated that these reports would still be posted to the website for public 
review. 
 Sawyer requested an update on the sidewalk obstruction issues that Robert Clark 
had brought to Council’s attention a few months ago. Roumagoux reported that a 
walkabout has been scheduled with Clark and city staff later this week. 
 

DISCUSSION ITEMS AND PRESENTATIONS 
 
 Update on Fulfillment Services Contract with the Greater Newport Chamber of 
Commerce. Lorna Davis, Executive Director of the Greater Newport Chamber of 
Commerce introduced staff and board members, Sheena Scarberry, Judy Kuhl, Patti 
Ferry, Jamie Rand, and Catherine Rickbone. She distributed and reviewed a handout 
which described the Chamber’s prior year’s work on the fulfillment services agreement. 
Allen noted that the Chamber has an agreement with the city to use the city-owned 
building, and asked how the lease works relative to maintenance. Davis reported that 
the Chamber operates, maintains, and pays property taxes on the building. Allen added 
that the city provided $172,500 this year for the scope of services, and asked that Davis 
provide a breakdown on how the money is allocated to those services. Davis responded 
to other questions and agreed to provide the breakdown on allocation of fulfillment 
services.  
 
 Presentation of a Catastrophic Event Document by Jim Hawley. Roumagoux asked 
Jim Hawley how many years he had served on the Airport Committee. Hawley reported 
that he was appointed by Mark Collson when Collson was Mayor. He added that he is 
currently a volunteer for the Police Department. 

Hawley reported that he has a document that he wanted to present to Council. He 
added that part of the document involves the airport, and expressed hope that the 
document be given to the airport and displayed on a wall in that facility. He noted that 
the document is entitled, “Infrastructure Vulnerability in a Catastrophic CSZ Event and 
Implications on Disaster Response for the Oregon Coast,” and was prepared by Dr. 
Wiley Thompson who is a department head at West Point. Hawley reviewed disaster 
preparations that have occurred in Lincoln County. He urged Council to consider two 
recommendations: 1. To work with 1110 AM, a Bend radio station that has agreed with 
Lincoln County to operate at a higher power in the event of a major disaster for the 
dissemination of emergency information to coastal residents; and 2. To work with the 
fishing fleet as a potential source of diesel fuel and ice in the event of a major disaster 
on the Oregon coast. Allen agreed to contact Jenny Demaris, the County’s Emergency 
Manager to follow-up on the two recommendations and provide information to Nebel. 
Nebel reported that he has met with representatives from the Police and Fire 
Departments to discuss the city’s emergency response in conjunction with the county 
plan. 
 

ACTION ITEMS 
 



 Consideration of 2014 Town Hall Meeting Schedule. Hawker introduced this agenda 
item. Nebel reported that the issue before Council is the consideration of the 2014 Town 
Hall meeting schedule. He noted that Council has been holding Town Hall meetings on 
the fifth Monday of the months in which there are five Mondays. He added that there are 
four months with five Mondays in 2014: March, June, September, and December. He 
noted that the December date was not included in the proposed motion as the holiday 
season is a difficult time to get a City Council quorum and a good community turn-out. 
He suggested that, if Council approves the Town Hall meeting schedule, that staff be 
directed to determine the locations with one meeting being held in each of the south, 
north, and central areas of the city. Nebel recommended approval of the proposed date. 
MOTION was made by Allen, seconded by Sawyer, to establish the 2014 Town Hall 
meeting schedule as follows: March 31, June 30, and September 29. The motion carried 
unanimously in a voice vote. 
 
 Direction to Staff to Conduct a Review of Unappropriated Ending Fund Balances for 
all City Funds. Hawker introduced this agenda item. Nebel reported that the issue before 
Council is consideration of the provision in Resolution No. 3534 that Council direct staff 
to conduct a complete review of all the city’s funds no later than January 2014. Nebel 
recommended directing staff to review the unappropriated ending fund balances for all 
city funds. Gazewood reviewed the purpose of the recommendation. 
 MOTION was made by Sawyer, seconded by Beemer, to direct the Finance 
Department to conduct a complete review of unappropriated ending fund balances for all 
city funds pursuant to Policy 2.2.4, and such other review requirements as set forth in 
the financial policy, and that this review will be presented at the first meeting of the 
FY2015 Budget Committee, and that further goals will be established. The motion 
carried unanimously in a voice vote. Allen noted that this work will likely require audited 
figures from last year. He asked whether this direction should be delayed as the audit is 
unfinished. Nebel reported that the city has all audited figures except for the actuarial on 
the retirement fund. It was noted that another Audit Committee meeting will be 
scheduled soon to review the audit before presenting the audit report to Council. A 
discussion ensued regarding filling the vacancy on the Audit Committee, and Nebel 
noted that it would be advantageous to have someone from the Budget Committee 
serve in this capacity. Staff agreed to e-mail the Budget Committee members to 
determine whether there is interest from a member in serving on the Audit Committee. 
 
 Consideration of Implementation of Interim Changes to the City Council Rules. 
Hawker introduced this agenda item. Nebel reported that the issue before Council is 
consideration of possible operational changes for the City Council meetings. He 
recommended a trial period for the proposed changes. He added that existing City 
Council Rules could be suspended if they conflict with the proposed interim changes. 
 Nebel proposed a change to the agenda format. He suggested that the revised 
agenda format include that proclamations, presentations, or special recognitions occur 
at the beginning of the meeting following the roll call. He added that this would be 
followed by public comment and other agenda items. He recommended that the consent 
calendar be utilized more extensively, and that this would include any minutes, any non-
controversial renewal of leases or agreements, ratification of Mayoral appointments, and 
other items that should not require extensive discussion. He noted that this will allow 



more time for the more significant agenda items. He recommended that public hearings 
be scheduled following the approval of the consent calendar. He added this this will 
allow staff to post public hearings for the beginning of the meeting. He noted that this 
should provide a better flow to the meetings and create more predictability for citizens 
who attend the public hearings. Nebel noted that the next component of the agenda 
would be communications, and this would include any items that were requested to be 
placed on the agenda by the Mayor, Councilors, City Attorney, boards or committees, 
other governmental entities, and the general public. He added that this will facilitate an 
earlier presence for individuals who may be attending the Council meetings for a report 
or issue that they have placed on the agenda. Nebel reported that the next section of the 
agenda would include the City Manager’s report. He added that the City Manager’s 
Report will be a series of items requiring Council action that are forwarded from the 
departments and staff, through the City Manager, to the City Council. He noted that the 
exception would be public comment and Council Reports and comments that would 
occur prior to adjournment. 
 Nebel reviewed several proposed changes to the existing operations. He noted that 
one recommendation includes restrictions on adding agenda items that might require 
Council action at the meeting. He added that he is recommending this as there may not 
be sufficient background information to outline all the potential ramifications of taking 
action on an unannounced basis at the City Council meeting. He requested that if a 
Councilor has an issue of concern that may require Council action during a Council 
meeting, to refer the issue back to city administration for a report at a following meeting. 
He noted that this will allow staff to adequately research the issue and provide a report 
with a recommendation on how to proceed. He added that this will create more 
transparency and trust that surprises will not occur at Council meetings. 
 Nebel outlined an option where citizens could place an item on the agenda for 
Council consideration. He noted that the item would have to be placed in accordance 
with agenda deadlines and with any supporting materials. He added that this is a good 
process and will provide Council an opportunity to be aware of a potential issue that a 
citizen would like to address. He noted that it also gives staff an opportunity to review 
the matter and provide appropriate information. 
 Nebel reported that it is his intention to prepare a summary report and specific 
recommendations for items that Council will be asked to consider at a City Council 
meeting. He added that the exception will be items brought forth by Councilors or 
citizens. 
 Nebel proposed that during Council meetings, the Mayor announce each category of 
agenda item; the City Recorder read the title of the agenda item; and the Mayor will then 
recognize the City Manager who will give a brief summary of the item. He noted that he 
may request staff to provide more detail on complex items. He added that once that is 
complete, any public comment requests will be recognized by the Mayor. He reported 
that Council discussion and appropriate motions will complete the agenda item. 
 Nebel recommended that Council, staff, and the City Manager refrain from engaging 
in dialogue with the public during public comment or public hearings. He further 
recommended that any questions that arise during the public comment or public hearing 
periods be answered by the appropriate parties following the close of the public 
comment/hearing section. He noted that this would allow participants to get their three 
minutes of time to address Council without interruption. He added that if Councilors 



have questions of any of the people speaking during the public comment/hearing 
periods, these questions could be posed following the close of the public 
comment/hearing period, and after the Councilors are recognized by the Mayor. 
 Nebel reported that the proposed operational procedures outline the process for 
submitting items to the agenda including deadlines. He stated that it is important to have 
deadlines so that staff can accomplish the work in a timely fashion. He noted that the 
packets will be available electronically by 4:00 P.M., on the Thursday prior to the City 
Council meeting, and hardcopies of the packet will be in Council mailboxes by 8:00 
A.M., on the Friday before Council meetings. He added that any Councilor, City 
Attorney, city committee, or any citizen, may request that an item be placed on the 
agenda. He noted that this will be done by contacting the City Manager’s office by 5:00 
P.M. on the Tuesday prior to the Council meeting. Nebel recommended approval of the 
Interim Operational Procedures for the City of Newport City Council Meetings. 
 Roumagoux asked for Council comments. Allen noted that the existing Council Rules 
allow the City Manager flexibility in arranging the agenda. MOTION was made by 
Beemer, seconded by Allen, that the Interim Operational Procedures for the City of 
Newport City Council Meetings dated January 21, 2014, be approved with a review of 
the effectiveness of the Interim Operational Procedures for the City of Newport City 
Council Meetings being reviewed on Monday, June 2, 2014, and that any conflicting 
provision of the City of Newport Council Rules, as amended on April 15, 2013, be 
suspended through this period of time in accordance with the provision for suspension 
of rules. The motion carried unanimously in a voice vote. 
 
 Presentation of Draft Budget Schedule for the Preparation of the Fiscal Year 
2014/2015 Budget for the City of Newport Including Goal Setting Session and Budget 
Committee Meetings. Hawker introduced the agenda item. Nebel reported that the issue 
before Council is consideration of the proposed schedule for the Fiscal Year 2014/2015 
budget process. He noted that, in consultation with Gazewood, a budget calendar has 
been drafted. He reviewed the proposed calendar with the key dates. Nebel 
recommended that Council reserve most of the day for the February 24 goal setting 
Busby noted that there are only five days between the time the Budget Committee 
receives the budget and the first meeting. It was agreed to push all the proposed 
meeting dates back by one week. Allen asked whether there would be an approach to 
the recommendations from the Infrastructure Task Force during the goal setting session. 
Nebel noted that one of the things that he would like to accomplish is making sure that 
at the end of the goal setting session, he understands City Council priorities in looking at 
the upcoming budget. Allen noted that there has to be a public hearing for the adoption 
of the budget and one for state shared revenues. Council concurred with the modified 
budget and goal setting calendar. 
 Beemer noted that he has been excused for the February 17 and March 3 meetings, 
and will miss the goal setting session as it falls within the dates he will be out of town. 
  

LOCAL CONTRACT REVIEW BOARD MEETING 
 
 Roumagoux noted that the City Council, acting as the Local Contract Review Board, 
would be considering an action item. 



 Hawker introduced the agenda item. Nebel reported that the issue before the Board 
is consideration of the purchase and outfitting of a Fire Department Command vehicle. 
He noted that this vehicle, if the purchase is approved, will replace a 1993 Chevrolet 
Suburban with 165,000 miles. He added that the new vehicle would be a 2013 Chevrolet 
Tahoe at a cost of $32,400 from the state bid, with the cost of outfitting at $10,193.84. 
Nebel recommended the purchase. 
 Sawyer asked Murphy what type of transmission the vehicle will have, and Murphy 
noted that it would be an automatic transmission. 
 MOTION was made by Sawyer, seconded by Busby, to authorize staff to spend up to 
$50,000 from the Fire Department Capital Vehicle Acquisition Fund (101-1090-7004) to 
purchase and outfit a 2013 Chevrolet Tahoe fire command vehicle. The motion carried 
unanimously in a voice vote. 
 

RESUME CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 

COUNCIL REPORTS AND COMMENTS 
 
 Sawyer reported that he had attended a recent COG Board meeting. He noted that 
the COG has a new executive director who will likely attend an upcoming Council 
meeting. 
 Sawyer reported that he had attended the celebration of life for former Police Chief 
Jim Rivers. 
 Sawyer reported that Clay Creech, former HMSC employee, passed away this week. 
 Busby reported that he had attended a recent meeting of the Public Arts Committee. 
He noted that the Committee is focused on conducting a public art inventory, and the 
application of the Percentage for the Arts program to the new municipal swimming pool. 
 Busby reported that the Airport Committee did not meet this month due to lack of a 
quorum. 
 Beemer reported that he had also attended the celebration of life for former Police 
Chief Rivers. He recognized the passing of Clay Creech and Kathy Patton. 
 Allen reported that he had attended the recent OCZMA meeting. He noted that 
Senator Roblan and Representative Gomberg were there and provided a brief update 
on the upcoming short legislative session. 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
 Having no further business, the meeting adjourned at 7:52 P.M. 
 
 
 
___________________________________  ________________________________ 
Margaret M. Hawker, City Recorder    Sandra N. Roumagoux, Mayor 
 
 
 



January 15, 2014 
6:00 P.M. 

Newport, Oregon 
 
 

JOINT MEETING OF THE 
NEWPORT CITY COUNCIL AND THE 

LINCOLN COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
 
 
 

Councilor Members present: Roumagoux, Swanson, Sawyer, Busby, Saelens, Beemer, 
and Allen. 
 
Commissioners present: Thompson, Hall, and Hunt. 
 
Staff present: Hawker, Tokos, Gross, Paige, Belmont, Herring, Miller, Landers, Husing, 
Buisman, and Demaris. 
 
Thompson called the meeting to order at 6:00 P.M., and noted that the public comment 
period would occur at the end of the County Commissioner’s meeting. 
 
COMPOSTING DISCUSSION 
 
Allen distributed a timeline regarding curbside composting. He noted that he has 
communicated with staff at Thompson’s Sanitary Service to put together a process for 
review of the proposal for the composing of yard debris and food waste. Allen reported 
that the recent Thompson’s Sanitary Service newsletter was included as a part of the 
city’s packet. He noted that the next step is an update from Thompson’s at the February 
3 Council meeting followed by a public forum on the curbside composting program at the 
City Council meeting of February 18. Allen added that proposed action is scheduled 
before the City Council at its March 3 meeting which is prior to the annual rate review. He 
noted that this schedule meets Thompson’s objectives. Allen asked whether the city’s 
timeline meets the county’s timeline. Hunt noted that the county is not under the rate 
review deadline; not in a position to make a determination on the issue; and the issue is 
best handled first by the city. 
 
WORKFORCE HOUSING 
 
Hall reported that the Community Services Consortium had convened a discussion with 
the Lincoln County Land Trust and others on the subject of workforce housing. He noted 
that it is the consensus of various groups to continue working, and expand the scope, on 
the workforce housing issue. He added that to be effective, a full-time position needs to 
be created. He noted that he would like to bring a proposal to the City of Newport and City 
of Lincoln City, that the two cities and Lincoln County jointly fund the full-time position for 
the Lincoln County Land Trust. 
 



WARMING CENTER 
 
Hall reported that a group approached Lincoln County and the Fair Board about the 
possibility of having a warming center at the fairgrounds. He added that the plans were 
approved for a warming center at this location, and the group is currently recruiting, 
training, and finalizing operating protocols. 
 
URBAN GROWTH BOUNDARY AMENDMENT – CITY RESERVOIR AREA 
 
Belmont reported that the city has an application with Lincoln County to bring the property 
around the city reservoirs into the urban growth boundary. He distributed a draft 
memorandum of agreement. Allen asked about timing of a possible annexation, and 
Belmont noted that it would take approximately six months. Gross asked whether Lincoln 
County would be amenable to a joint use agreement in the transition period before the 
property is annexed into the city. Buisman asked Gross whether he had a time frame for 
the transition. Tokos noted that the memorandum of understanding is a good next step. 
Allen stated that the memorandum of agreement would need to be reviewed by city staff 
and the city’s legal counsel. 
 
AIRPORT 
 
Busby noted that the city owns, operates, and maintains the airport that serves all of 
Lincoln County. He added that the City Manager plans to review the airport and the its 
management. He asked whether Lincoln County had an interest in participating in the 
support of the airport. Hall stated that Lincoln County is interested in being part of a 
discussion about the future of the airport. Hunt asked whether the Port should also be 
involved in this discussion. 
 
EMERGENCY PLANNING AND PREPAREDNESS 
 
Demaris suggested the city designate/hire an emergency manager. She reported that the 
EOC will be activated on February 13, and urged the city to participate by activating its 
EOC. She noted that ICS 300 and 400 courses are required for activating an emergency. 
Hunt reported that he had attended a recent FEMA training and stressed how critical 
tracking is to a FEMA reimbursement in an emergency. Saelens reported that an 
associated issue is having an emergency debris management plan. It was noted that 
Lincoln County entities are reviewing their Emergency Operating Plans. 
 
EMS TRANSPORT 
 
Belmont reported that Lincoln County assigns ambulance service areas. He noted that 
there are current discussions with providers of ambulance services in hope of updating 
the plan. He added that he has met with the Fire Chiefs in the county, and his goal is to 
develop a more robust system before awarding franchises. He also mentioned that he 
wants to leave room for a fire consolidation discussion. 
 
 



ROADS AND PROPERTY 
 
Belmont reported that the city property inventory found clouds on the titles of some 
properties. He noted that county staff had looked at county properties within the city limits 
and identified some issues that could be resolved in the near future. Thompson stated 
that the city and county staffs need to talk and bring to the governing bodies a timeline as 
to when the appropriate property transfers and dedications will be made. Belmont noted 
that he would like Buisman to review the property list before he retires. Allen added that 
he would like, as a Councilor, a prioritization of what needs to be done first, etc. Gross 
suggested sorting out the right-of-way issues first. 
 
COMMENTS 
 
Thompson asked whether the new municipal swimming pool was moving forward, and 
Gross reported that an RFP is being prepared for architectural services, but that the 
project will take several years to design, bid, and construct. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Having no further business, the meeting adjourned at 6:51 P.M. 
 
 
 



 



c.breves
Typewritten Text
CC.IV.B1&2

c.breves
Typewritten Text









Page 1 of 2 

  Agenda Item # V.A.  
 Meeting Date February 3, 2014  
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 
City of Newport, Oregon 

 
 
Issue/Agenda Title Public Hearing and Possible Adoption of Ord. No. 2062, amending Ordinance No. 1922, as amended 
by Ordinance No. 1931, relating to the 2007 Annexation of 102.23 acres in South Beach 
 
Prepared By: Derrick Tokos Dept Head Approval:  DT   City Mgr Approval:    

 
ISSUE BEFORE THE COUNCIL:  Consideration of whether or not it is in the public interest to repeal Sections 
3(B), 3(C), and 3(D) of Ordinance No. 1922, as amended by Ordinance No. 1931.  These ordinance provisions require 
that SE 40th Street be improved prior to occupancy permits being issued within the annexed territory.  Further, they 
impose a “trip cap” of 180 peak hour vehicle trips that can be attributed to new development at the intersection of US 
101 and SE 40th Street.  At its January 14, 2014 meeting, the Newport Planning Commission recommended that these 
sections of the ordinance be repealed because the required roadway improvements have been completed, and the trip 
cap of 180 peak hours vehicle trips has been replaced with a new program for ensuring that the transportation system 
can adequately handle vehicle trips attributed to development of the annexed territory. 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends the City Council accept the Planning Commission’s 
recommendation and repeal the referenced ordinance sections. 
 
PROPOSED MOTION:  I move for reading by title only of Ordinance No. 2062, an ordinance amending Ordinance 
No. 1922, as amended by Ordinance No. 1931, relating to the 2007 Annexation of 102.23 acres in South Beach, and for 
adoption by roll call vote. 
 
KEY FACTS AND INFORMATION SUMMARY:  On June 18, 2007, the Newport City Council adopted 
Ordinance No. 1922, an ordinance providing for the annexation and zoning of 102.23 acres of property in South 
Beach.  The annexed property included a site for the Oregon Coast Community College, which has since been 
developed, along with Phase 1 of the “Wilder” planned development, then owned by Emery Investments, Inc. and 
Landwaves, Inc., and a vacant industrial property owned by GVR Investments.  The Oregon Department of 
Transportation (ODOT) appealed the City of Newport’s decision arguing that it did not comply with Oregon’s 
Transportation Planning Rule (TPR), which is codified in Chapter 660, Division 12 of the Oregon Administrative 
Rules. 
 
To resolve the appeal, the affected parties entered into a Settlement Agreement, which required that certain 
improvements be made to the transportation system, including upgrades to the intersection of SE 40th Street and US 
101.  Further, the Agreement imposed a limitation (“trip cap”) of 180 peak hour vehicle trips attributed to new 
development at this improved intersection.  On August 6, 2007 the Newport City Council adopted Ordinance No. 
1931, amending Ordinance No. 1922 to incorporate operable provisions of the Settlement Agreement, including 
supplemental findings to establish that the 180 peak hour vehicle trip cap and associated improvements to the 
intersection of SE 40th Street and US 101 complied with the TPR. 
 
After the Settlement Agreement was signed, and Ordinance No. 1931 was adopted, the City worked with its community 
partners to identify a series of transportation projects to improve traffic flow and mobility in South Beach, extended the 
duration of the South Beach Urban Renewal Plan to create a funding source for the projects, and updated its 



Page 2 of 2 

Transportation System Plan to include policies and implementation strategies for moving ahead with the projects 
(Ordinance No. 2045).  Lincoln County adopted complimentary changes to its Transportation System Plan (Ordinance 
No. 470) and the State of Oregon agreed to allow more congestion on US 101 in South Beach then it would normally 
allow by putting in place alternative mobility targets (12/18/13 Amendment to the Oregon Highway Plan).  In sum, 
these changes eliminate the concerns that led to the imposition of the limitations contained in Sections 3(B), 3(C), and 
3(D) of Ordinance No. 1922, as amended by Ordinance No. 1931. 
 
On December 10, 2013, Bonnie Serkin, Chief Operating Officer for Landwaves, Inc., submitted a letter to the City 
asking that it assist in amending the Settlement Agreement and Ordinance No. 1922, as amended, to lift the above 
referenced limitations.  This was in anticipation of the Oregon Transportation Commission approving the Highway 
Plan Amendment at its 12/18/13 meeting, which did in fact occur.  Section 14.36.020 of the Newport Municipal Code 
allows the City Council, by motion, to initiate amendments to a land use ordinance and on 12/16/13 the Newport City 
Council voted to begin the process of making the necessary changes. 
 
Required notice was provided to the Department of Land Conservation and Development on December 11, 2013.  In 
accordance with NMC 14.52.060, notice of the Planning Commission and City Council hearings was published in the 
Newport News-Times on January 3, 2014 and January 24, 2014, respectively. 
 

OTHER ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED:  None.   
 

CITY COUNCIL GOALS:  Completing the Transportation System Plan amendments was a prior Council goal. 
 

ATTACHMENT LIST: 

 Ordinance No. 2062 

 Ordinance No. 1931 

 Ordinance No. 2045 

 December 10, 2013 letter from Bonnie Serkin, Chief Operating Officer, Landwaves, Inc. 

 Draft minutes from the January 14, 2014 Planning Commission meeting 

 Public Notice of the February 3, 2014 hearing 
 

FISCAL NOTES:  There are no direct fiscal impacts associated with this agenda item. 



  CC.V.A2 

Page 1 ORDINANCE NO. 2062, Amending Ordinance 1922, as amended by Ordinance No. 1931 

CITY OF NEWPORT 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2062 
 

An Ordinance Amending Ordinance No. 1922, as amended by 
Ordinance No. 1931, 

Relating to the 2007 Annexation 
of 102.23 acres in South Beach 

 
 
Summary of Findings: 
 
1. On June 18, 2007 the Newport City Council adopted Ordinance No. 1922, an 

ordinance providing for the annexation and zoning of 102.23 acres of property in South 
Beach. 

 
2. Annexed property included a site for the Oregon Coast Community College, which has 

since been developed, along with Phase 1 of the “Wilder” planned development, then 
owned by Emery Investments, Inc. and Landwaves, Inc., and a vacant industrial 
property owned by GVR Investments. 

 
3. The Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT) appealed the City of Newport’s 

decision arguing that it did not comply with Oregon’s Transportation Planning Rule 
(TPR), which is codified in Chapter 660, Division 12 of the Oregon Administrative 
Rules. 

 
4. Affected parties entered into a Settlement Agreement to resolve the appeal, which 

required that certain improvements be made to the transportation system, including 
upgrades to the intersection of SE 40th Street and US 101.  Further, the Agreement 
imposed a limitation (“trip cap”) of 180 peak hour vehicle trips attributed to new 
development at this improved intersection. 

 
5. On August 6, 2007 the Newport City Council adopted Ordinance No. 1931, amending 

Ordinance No. 1922 to incorporate operable provisions of the Settlement Agreement, 
including supplemental findings to establish that the 180 peak hour vehicle trip cap 
and associated improvements to the intersection of SE 40th Street and US 101 
complied with the TPR. 

 
6. Section 3(B) of Ordinance No 1922, as amended, stipulated that improvements to the 

SE 40th Street and US 101 intersection were to be constructed and operating, under 
an approach road permit from ODOT, prior to issuance of occupancy permits within 
the annexed territory.  An approach permit was issued by ODOT and the City and 
State have accepted the street improvements; therefore, the conditions imposed by 
Section 3(B) of Ordinance No. 1922, as amended, have been satisfied and are no 
longer needed. 

 



  CC.V.A2 

Page 2 ORDINANCE NO. 2062, Amending Ordinance 1922, as amended by Ordinance No. 1931 

7. Section 3(C) of Ordinance No. 1922, as amended, prohibits the City from issuing 
building permits for land uses in the annexed territory that would generate more than 
180 peak hour trips based upon a Saturday mid-day peak hour in August.  While this 
limitation has not been exceeded to date, it has been replaced by recent changes to 
the City of Newport Transportation System Plan (Ordinance No. 2045); Lincoln County 
Transportation System Plan (Ordinance No. 470), and the State of Oregon Highway 
Plan.  These changes put in place new, more flexible mobility targets for US 101; a 
plan and program for financing needed enhancements to the transportation system for 
the next 20-years; a trip budget program that allocates a total of 1,237 pm peak hour 
trips attributed to new development in the area within which the annexed territory is 
located; standards that outline when transportation improvements are required in 
conjunction with new development; and standards for when traffic impacts attributed 
to new development must be analyzed in detail.  City Ordinance No. 2045, County 
Ordinance No. 470, and the amendment to the Oregon Highway Plan are supported 
by findings of compliance with the TPR. 

 
8. Section 3(D) of Ordinance No. 1922, as amended, sets out parameters for when and 

how analysis is to be performed to establish compliance with the TPR in the event the 
annexed territory creates impacts in excess of 180 peak hour trips.  As discussed 
above, in Finding No. 7, a new program has been adopted that no longer hinges upon 
the 180 peak hour trip threshold as the determining factor for when additional TPR 
analysis is required.  The new program includes specific provisions that address when 
TPR compliance is required and how TPR compliance is to be achieved; therefore, 
the Section 3(D) trip limitation and associated procedures are no longer needed. 

 
9. Consistent with Chapter 14.36.020.A of the Newport Municipal Code, the Newport City 

Council initiated the legislative process to carry out revisions contained within this 
Ordinance by motion at a meeting on December 16, 2013. 

 
10. On January 14, 2014, the Newport Planning Commission held a public hearing to 

consider an amendment to Ordinance No. 1922, as amended, repealing Sections 
3(B), 3(C), and 3(D), and voted to recommend adoption of the amendment. 

 
11. On February 3, 2014, the Newport City Council held a public hearing regarding the 

question of the proposed amendment and voted in favor of its adoption after 
considering the recommendation of the Planning Commission and all evidence and 
argument in the record. 

 
12. Information in the record, including affidavits of mailing and publication, demonstrate 

that appropriate public notification was provided for both the Planning Commission 
and City Council Hearings 

 
 THE CITY OF NEWPORT ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1.  The above findings, and those adopted in support of City of Newport Ordinance 
No. 2045, Lincoln County Ordinance No. 470 and the associated State Highway Plan 
Amendment are hereby adopted as support for this Ordinance. 



  CC.V.A2 

Page 3 ORDINANCE NO. 2062, Amending Ordinance 1922, as amended by Ordinance No. 1931 

 
Section 2.  Sections 3(B), 3(C), and 3(D) of Ordinance No. 1922, as amended by 
Ordinance No. 1931, are hereby repealed. 
 
Section 3.  This ordinance shall take effect 30 days after passage. 
 
Adopted by the Newport City Council on __________, 2014. 
 
Signed by the Mayor on the _______ day of _______________, 2014. 
 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Sandra N. Roumagoux, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_________________________________________ 
 
Margaret M. Hawker, City Recorder 
 
 
Approved: 
 
_________________________________________ 
 
City Attorney 
 

 
 



CITY OF NEWPORT 

ORDINANCE NO. 

  

9 	 

    

An Ordinance Amending Ordinance No. 1922 By Adopting New Conditions and 
Findings In Support of Approval of Annexation, Zone Change and Withdrawal In 
Planning File 1-AX-07/2-Z-07 and Declaring an Emergency 

Findings 

1. In Ordinance 1922, the city approved the annexation of property in the South Beach 
area, the withdrawal of the property from certain special districts, and the rezoning of the 
property from county to city zoning. 

2. The Oregon Department of Transportation appealed the decision to LUBA and has 
argued that the decision did not comply with the Transportation Planning Rule (TPR). 

3. The city withdrew its decision for reconsideration so that it could adopt a new decision 
that unquestionably complies with the TPR. 

4. The city has consulted with ODOT and the parties, and ODOT has agreed that the 
additional conditions adopted in this ordinance assure compliance with the TPR. 

5. On reconsideration, the city council held a duly noticed public hearing, and decided to 
reaffirm its original decision, but add additional conditions and findings. 

Based on the above findings, 

THE CITY OF NEWPORT ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. 	Section 2 of Ordinance No. 1922 is amended to read as follows: 

Section 2. 

The findings attached as Exhibit "B" are hereby adopted in support of the 
annexation, withdrawal, and zoning designations as adopted in Section 1. The 
Supplemental Findings attached as Exhibit 1 are adopted as findings in support 
of the annexation, withdrawal and zoning designations and provide the relevant 
findings necessary for demonstration of compliance with the Transportation 
Planning Rule. 

Section 3 of Ordinance No. 1922 is amended by adding additional conditions B 
through F to read as follows: 

B. The 40th  Street Improvements shall be constructed and operating, with 
an approach road permit from ODOT, prior to issuance of occupancy permits for 
the Annexation Territory. 

C. City shall not issue building permits for land uses in the Annexation 

CITY OF NEWPORT 
ORDINANCE No. /95/  
Page 1 of 3 

c.breves
Typewritten Text
CC.V.A3

c.breves
Typewritten Text



First Reading: 
Second Reading: 
Adoption: 

Territory that would generate more than 180 peak hour trips (based on a 
Saturday mid-day peak hour in August), based upon the expected trip generation 
called for in the 1TE Trip Generation Manual, 6 th  Edition. 

D. Development of the Annexation Territory that creates impacts in excess 
of 180 peak hour trips (based on a Saturday mid-day peak hou in August) may 
occur only after a demonstration of compliance with the TPR. TPR compliance 
can be demonstrated through the amendment of the TSP and CIP, or at the time 
of a land use application or building permit. To comply with OAR 660-012-0060 
the City will treat any building permit application as a land use application 
subject to the procedures used for a Type II Conditional Use permit and for all 
land use applications and building permits will ensure that notice is provided to 
ODOT, that ODOT is allowed to participate in review of the development 
proposal and that the final City decision regarding the development proposal with 
respect to compliance with OAR 660-012-0060 can be appealed to LUBA if 
necessary. TPR compliance means the proposal complies with OAR 660-012- 
0060, and a demonstration that the proposed development would not cause the 
Impacted Intersection to fail to meet ODOT performance standards, taking into 
account any mitigation required as a condition of approval as well as any 
completed improvements and any projects on a Capital Improvements Project list 
that are planned for construction and funding within the planning horizon. City 
may impose conditions to insure that the performance standards are met and the 
TPR is complied with, but any improvements to the Impacted Intersections are 
subject to ODOT approval. 

E. The Ferry Slip Road and Highway 101 intersection will be closed after Ash 
Street Construction is completed. 

F. Terms used in Conditions B through E shall have the meanings used for 
those terms in the Settlement Agreement attached to Exhibit 1. 

Section 3. 	Ordinance No. 1922 is amended by attaching a new Exhibit 1, Supplemental 
Findings, in the form of Exhibit 1 to this ordinance. 

Section 4. 	Ordinance No. 1922 is further amending by deleting Conclusion 3.D.2 from 
Exhibit "B" Findings of Fact and Conclusions. 

Section 5. 	Except as expressly modified in this ordinance, all provisions of Ordinance No. 
1922 as originally adopted remain in effect. 

Section 6. 	Immediate adoption of this ordinance is needed for the immediate preservation 
of the peace, health and safety of the city, accordingly an emergency is declared 
and this ordinance shall take effect immediately upon passage. 

CITY OF NEWPORT 
ORDINANCE No./ 
Page 2 of 3 



, 2007. Signed by the Mayor on 

Wi liam D. Bain, ayor 

ATTEST: 

CITY OF NEWPORT 
ORDINANCE No. 	 
Page 3 of 3 



EXHIBIT 1 

SUPPLEMENTAL FINDINGS 
File No. 1-AX-07/2-Z-07 

(Ordinance No. 1922 as Amended) 

Findings 

Procedural Findings 

1, 	After Ordinance No. 1922 was adopted approving the annexation, 
withdrawal and zoning designation of property in File No. 1-AX-07 and 2-Z-
07, the Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT) appealed the decision 
to the Oregon Land Use Board of Appeals 

2. After discussions with ODOT about ODOT's concerns with the decision 
and what it would take to address ODOT's concerns, the city withdrew the 
decision for reconsideration. After the appeal was filed, representatives of 
the applicants, ODOT and City staff met to discuss possible resolution of the 
appeal issues. Discussions continued after the decision was withdrawn, and 
the representatives present at the meetings reached agreement regarding an 
acceptable solution to ODOT's concerns. A copy of agreement as agreed to 
he the representatives is attached and the recitals of that agreement are 
incorporated as findings. Final agreement by the parties consistent with the 
agreement of the representatives is anticipated. 

3. The city held a duly noticed hearing on the decision on reconsideration 
on August 6, 2007. 

4. After considering all evidence and arguments, the Council decided to 
uphold the original decision as modified with additional conditions that 
resolve all of ODOT's concerns. 

Substantive Findings 

5. The record includes a letter from Christian Snuffin dated July 20, 2007, 
with the subject line: "40 th  Street TIA/Revised Analysis" (the "Supplemental 
TIA"), Mr. Snuffin is a licensed professional traffic engineer. Mr. Snuffin is 
an experienced and knowledgeable profession and well qualified to analyze 
traffic impacts of development. The city accepts that the Supplemental TIA 
is a reliable professional analysis of traffic impacts. 

6. The Supplemental TIA demonstrates that, on development of the 
planned improvements to the 40 th  Street/Highway 101 intersection, 
development in the annexed area resulting in up to 180 Saturday mid-day 
peak hour trips in August may occur without causing any transportation 
facility to fall below acceptable standards, including ODOT mobility 
standards. 



7. The City will soon update its Transportation System Plan (TSP) and 
Capital Improvements Project (CIP) list. The City anticipates that the TSP 
and CIP will provide for construction and funding of Ash Street between 40 th 

 Street and Ferry Slip Road and the closure of the current intersection of Ferry 
Slip Road and Highway 101 by 2021. 

Conclusions 

8. The TPR requires governments to assure that planning decisions do 
not increase the impact on transportation facilities to the extent that the 
transportation facilities fail to meet applicable performance standards. 

9. The Supplemental TIA demonstrates that applicable performance 
standards will be met at all relevant transportation facilities if development is 
limited so that the total trips generated from the annexed area do not exceed 
180 peak hour trips. 

10. The decision imposes conditions of approval limiting development by 
placing a cap on the number of trips. The conditions of approval assure that 
development in the annexed and rezoned area will not cause any 
transportation facility to fail to meet applicable standards. 

11. Construction of Ash Street between 40 th  Street and Ferry Slip Road 
and closure of the Highway 101/Ferry Slip Road is reasonably likely to be 
provided within the planning period, in compliance with the TPR (OAR 660- 
012-0060(4)(b)(E)). 

12. As conditioned, the decision complies with the TPR. 



SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT 
CIT\ OF NEWPORT ANNEXATION AND ZONE CHANGE FOR SOUTH BEACH 

NEIGHBORHOOD ORDINANCE NO. 1922, HLE NO. I-AX-07/2-Z-07 

DATED: 	August 6, 2007 

BETWEEN: CITY OF NEWPORT 	 ("City") 

AND: 	THE STATE OF OREGON, by and through the OREGON 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 	 (-0DOT") 

AND: 	EMERY INVESTMENTS, INC., an Oregon corporation 	("En 
LANDWAVES, 1NC,, an Oregon corporation 	 ("LW") 

AND: 	GVR INVESTMENTS, 	 ("GVR") 

AND: 	OREGON COAST COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 	("OCCC") 

RECITALS:  

A. City annexed and rezoned approximately 102 acres of real property owned by El and 
CIVR by Ordinance No, 1922, File No, 1-AX-07/2-Z-07 ("Annexation Approval"), 

B. The property involved in the Annexation Approval is adjacent to State Highway 
Highway under the jurisdiction and control of ODOT. 

C. The approximately 85 acres of real property owned by El is legally described in Exhibit 
A ("El Property"), and is expected to be developed with the first phase of the South Beach 
Neighborhood Plan, including OCCC's new campus, residential and commercial uses. Through 
the Annexation Approval, the El Property was rezoned from Timber Conservation (Lincoln 
County zoning) to Public, Commercial, High Density Residential and Low Density Residential 
(City zoning). 

D. -I he approximately 16.5 acres of real property owned by GVR is legally described in 
Exhibit B ("GVR Property"). Development is not immediately planned for the GVR Property, 
although it may be used in the future for an industrial use such as a concrete batch plant. 
Ihrough the Annexation Appro .\ al, the GVR Property was rezoned from Planned Industrial 
( Lincoln ( ounty zoning) to Industrial (1 - 3) (City zoning). 

E. The El Property and GVR Property are collectively referred to as the "Annexation 
Territory, -  

F. ODOT appealed the Annexation Approval to the Oregon Land Use Board of Appeals 
( - LUBA-) because ODOT does not think that the Annexation Approval complies with 
Transportation Planning Rule ("TPR"), In particular, ODOT is concerned about the functioning 
of three intersections with Highway 101 including the proposed Highway 101/40 Street 



intersection, the Highway 101/32" Street intersection and the Highway 101'Ferry Slip Road 
intersection (collectively, the "Impacted Intersections"). 

( 	As part of the developrnent of the South Beach Neighborhood Plan, a loop road off of 
ighway 101 will be constructed, V■ ith an intersection at Highway 101 and 40 th  Street. At this 

time, no signal at the intersection of Highway 101 and 40 th  Street is V1arranted or authorized by 
ODOT for installation. The improvements to the inteNection of Highway 101 and 40 th  Street 
that arc needed to accommodate the traffic generated by the Annexation Territory include a 
southbound left turn lane on Highway 101, a northbound right turn lane on Highway 101 and a 
left turn lane from 40 th  Street to Highway 101 southbound ( -40th  Street Improvements"). An 
approach road permit for 40 th  Street at Highway 101 w ill be required by 01)0T and may include 
other requirements of OAR Chapter 734, Division 51. 

I I. 	Ferry Slip Road currently has a stop-controlled intersection with Highway 101, By 2021, 
it is expected that the intersection of Highway 101 and Ferry Slip w ill be closed and Ash Street 

i 11 be extended from Ferry Slip Road to 40 th  Street to accommodate some of the traffic from the 
closed Ferry Slip Road intersection ("Ash Street Construction"). 

City is currently updating its Transportation System Plan ("TSP . ') and intends to adopt a 
Capital improvement Plan ("CIP - ). The 40th  Street Improvements and Ash Street Construction 
are expected to be included in the TSP and CIP. The TSP and CIP are expected to be adopted in 
2008. The TSP is expected to consider the traffic impacts from the Annexation Territory under 
City zoning, in compliance with the TPR. Thc CIP will set out a funding mechanism to ensure 
that the Ash Street Construction will be provided by 2021. 

The construction of OCCC's new campus is dependant upon a ti ite v -so ution of 
ODOT's appeal of the Annexation Approval. 

The Parties desire to enter into a settlement agreement that will insure that the 
Annexation Approval will not have a significant effect on Highway 101, or that any effect is 
mitigated as required by OAR 660-012-0060. 

City has withdrawn the Annexation Approval from LUBA under ORS 197.839(13)(b). 
City intends to reconsider the proposed annexation and rezoning of the Annexation Territory, 
and adopt a new ordinance that is supported by additional findings and conditions consistent with 
this Settlement Agreement that w ill replace the Annexation Approval ( -Revised Annexation 
Approval"), 

AGREEMENTS:  

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual co‘enants contained in this 
Agreement, and other valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are 
acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows: 



SEC ION TRIP CAP CONDITION 

1.1 	The Parties agree that the Saturday mid-day peak hour in August is the peak hour 
( - peak hour") that shall be used to determine if thc Impacted Intersections meet ODOT mobility 
standards. 

.1„2 	The July 20, 2007 supplemental traffic impact analysis, attached as Exhibit C. 
analyzed how many peak hour trips could be generated by the Annexation Territory while 
maintaining compliance with ODOT's mobility standards for the Impacted Intersections. 

(1.2.1) The supplemental traffic impact analysis demonstrates that 180 peak hour 
trips can be generated from the Annexation Territory and the Impacted Intersections will 
continue to operate within ODOT mobility standards through the build year of 2011, assuming 
(1) the 40 (1 ' Street Improvements arc constructed and (2) the Ash Street Construction has not 
occurred. 

(1,2.2) The Parties agree that the Revised Annexation Approval 'xill comply 
ith the 1PR if it includes the following conditions of approval: 

a) The TOfi t Street Improvements shall bc constructed and operating. with an approach road 
permit from ODOT, prior to issuance of occupancy permits for the Annexation Territory 

b) City shall not issue building permits for land uses in the Annexation Territory that would 
generate more than 180 peak hour trips, based upon the expected trip generation called for in the 
11 E Trip Generation Manual, 6`h  Edition. 

(e) 	Development of the Annexation Territory that creates impacts in excess of 180 peak hour 
trips may occur only after a demonstration of compliance with the TPR, TPR compliance can bc 
demonstrated through the amendment of the TSP and CIP, or at the timc of a land use application 
or building permit. To comply with OAR 660-012-0060 the City will treat any building permit 
application as a land use application subject to the procedures used for a Type II Conditional Use 
permit and for all land use applications and building permits, City will ensure that notice is 
provided to ODOT, that ODOT is allowed to participate in review of the development proposal 
and that the final City decision regarding the development proposal w ith respect to compliance 

ith OAR 660-012-0060 can be appealed to LUBA if necessary. TPR compliance means the 
proposal complies kN, ith OAR 660-012-0060, and a demonstration that the proposed development 

ould not cause the Impacted Intersection to fail to meet ODOT performance standards, taking 
into account any mitigation required as a condition of approval as well as any completed 
improvements and any projects on a Capital Improvements Project list that are planned for 
construction and funding within the planning horizon. City may impose conditions to insure that 
the performance standards are met and the TPR is complied w ith, but any improvements to the 
Impacted Intersections are subject to ODOT approval. 

(d) 	The Ferry Slip Road and Highw ay 101 intersection v 1 be closed after Ash Street 
Cons ruction is completed, 



L2.3) The first phase of development of the El Property is expected to generate 
140 peak icu trips. An industrial use of the GVR Property is expected to generate less than 40 
eak how Er ps. El, LW and GVR agree to enter into a separate agreement to allocate the peak 

flowed by the Trip Cap Condition. 

SECTION 2  401  STREET 

EW, LW, GVR, OCCC and City are currently negotiating an derLement to 
locate the costs of constructing the 40 th  Street Improvements. It is expected tha W will 

construct the 40 th  Street Improvements, utilizing real property dedicated by GVR nd financial 
tissistance from City and OCCC. 

	

2.7 	As explained in Recital I, the 40 th  Street I prove ents are expected to be 
included in the TSP and C1P. 

Access to OCCUs new campus is expected to rely upon the 40
th  Street 

Irnproeircnt. Accordingly, LW and GVR intend to apply for an Approach Road Permit to 

	

Iliohw ay I 	for 40" Street and the 40 th  Street Improvements prior to August 15, 2007 (the 
Approach Road Permit"). 

	

2,4 	ODOT agrees to process an Approach Road Permit application filed pursuant EO 
)AR 734-05 	veg. immediately upon receipt of an application filed by Landvvaves andlor 
IVR. 

SECTION 3 ASH STREET CONSTRUCTION 

As explained in Recitals H and I, the Ash Street Construction is expected to be included 
the TSP and CIP, and is expected to be complete by 2021. Accordingly, the Parties agree that 

the completion of the Ash Street Construction is reasonably likely to be provided within the 
planning period, in compliance with the TPR. OAR 660-012-0060(4)(b)(E), 

SECTION 4 REVISED ANNEXATION APPROVAL 

4,1 
Appro\ al 

4.? 
udes: 

As explained in Recital L, City intends to adopt the Revised Annexation 

ODOT agrees to not appeal the Revised Annexation Approval if the dec ion 

(4.2.1) The conditions of appro\ al described in Section 1.2.2. 

(4.2.2) Findings that the Ash Street Construction is reasonably likely to be 
provided within the planning period in compliance with the TPR (OAR 660-) 2-0060(4)(b)(E)), 
as provided in Section 3. 

4 



SECT ON 5, GENERAL PRO ISIONS 

5.1 	Time, Time is of the essence of this Agreen ent. 

Successors. The terms of this Agreement shall be binding on and inure to the 
benefit of the parties hereto and their respective legal representatives, successors and assigns. 

5.3 	Severability, If any term or provision of this Agreement shall to any extent be 
held invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement shall not be affected thereby, and 
each term or provision of this Agreement shall be valid and enforceable to the fullest extent 
permitted by law. 

5,4 	Exhibits. AU exhibits attached to this Agreement are incorporated herein by this 

5.5 	Recitals. All Recitals to this Agreement are incorporated herein by this reference. 

5 	 ment, This Agreement constitutes the complete agreement of the 
espect to the subject matter of this Agreement, except any contemporaneous written 

agreement between the parties relating to the same, and supersedes and replaces all prior oral and 
written agreements. 

Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, which when 
taken together shall constitute an original. This Agreement may also be executed by signature 
transmitted by facsimile and conformed with an original signature thereafter. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, thc parties have executed this Agreement as of the 
ten above. 

CITY: 	 CITY OF NEWPORT 

By: 
Title: 

ODOT: 	 OREGON DEPARTMENT OF 
TRANSPORTATION 

By: 	  
Title: 



El: 	 EMERY INVESTMENTS, INC, an Oregon 
corporation 

By: 	 
Title: 

LW: 	 LAND WAVES, INC., an Oregon corporation 

By: 
Title: 

GVR: 	 GVR INVESTMENTS 

By: 	  
Title: 

OCCC: 	 OREGON COAST COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
DISTRICT 

By: 	  
Title: 



EXHIBIT A 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF EMERY INVESTMENTS, INC PROPERTY 

Parcel I: 
P364534 	11-11-20-00-00100-00 
The East one-half of the Northeast one-quarter of Section 20, Township 11 South, Range 11 West WlIamette 
Meridian, in Lincoln County, Oregon 

Parcel II: 
P481032 	11-11-21-00-01300-00 
P464454 	11-11-21-00-00700-00 

The South one-half of the Southeast quarter; the Northwest quarter; the North one-half of the Southwest quarter: the 
Southeast quarter of the Southwest quarter; and the Southwest quarter of the Southwest quarter. Section 21, 
Township 11 South, Range 11 West, Willamette Meridian, in Lincoln County, Oregon, EXCEPT tract conveyed to 
Port of Newport by deed recorded in Book 100, Page 158, Deed Records. 

Parcel III: 
Parcel 

That portion ol' -the Northwest quarter of the Northeast cluarrer of Section 20, Township 11 South, Range 
11 West, Willamette Meridian, in Lincoln County, Oregon, described as follows: 

ileginning at the intersection of the North line of said Section and the Easterly right of way line of the 
Oregon Coast Highway 101; thence East, on said North section line, to the Northeast corner of the 
Northwest quarter of the Northeast quarter; thence South, on the East line of the said Northwest quarter 
of the Northeast quarter 700,00 feet, more or less, to the Northeast corner of the tract conveyed to Jack 
Stocker et ux, by deed recorded February 10, 1961 in Book 214, Page 134, Deed Records; thence North 
88 deg, 54 West 900.0 feet, more or less, to the Easterly right of way of the former U.S. Spruce 
Production Railroad right of way, described in deed to Henry J. Stocker et ux, recorded November 18, 
1947 in Book 122, Page 89. E)eed Records: thence Northerly, following the said Easterly right of way line 
to a point that is 30,0 feet from, when measured at right angles to, the North line of said Section; thence 
West 30.0 feet from and parallel to, said North line of said Section to the Easterly right of way line of the 
Oregon Coast Highway: thence Northerly along said Highway right of way line, to the point of beginning. 

Parcel 2: 
Commencing at the Southeast corner of Section 17, Township 11 South, Range 11 West, Willamette 
Meridian, in Lincoln County, Oregon; thence North 87 deg. 14' 17" West along the Southerly line of 
Section 17, a distance of 1353.62 feet to the true point of beginning; thence continuing along said section 
line. North 87 deg. 20' 22" West a distance of 83.75 feet; thence North 51 deg. 00' 00" East to the Easterly 
right of way of SE Chestnut Street a distance of 107.29 feet; thence South 00 deg. 13' 26" East along said 
Easterly right of way, a distance of 71,41 feet to the point of beginning, 

Tax Parcel Number: R347233 and R509944 and R518998 



EXHIBIT B 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF GVR PROPERTY 

Real property in the County of Lincoln, State of Oregon, described as follows: 

PARCEL 1: 

That portion of the Northwest quarter of the Northeast quarter of Section 20, Township 11 South, Range 
11 West, Willamette Meridian, in Lincoln County, Oregon, described as follows: 

Beginning at the intersection of the North line of said Section and the Easterly right of way line of the 
Oregon Coast Highway 101; thence East, on said North section line, to the Northeast corner of the 
Northwest quarter of the Northeast quarter; thence South, on the East line of the said Northwest quarter 
of the Northeast quarter 700.00 feet, more or less, to the Northeast corner of the tract conveyed to Jack 
Stocker et ux, by deed recorded February 10, 1961 in Book 214, Page 134, Deed Records; thence North 
88 deg. 54' West 900.0 feet, more or less, to the Easterly right of way of the former U.S. Spruce 
Production Railroad right of way, described in deed to Henry J. Stocker et ux, recorded November 18, 
1947 in Book 122, Page 89, Deed Records; thence Northerly, following the said Easterly right of way line 
to a point that is 30.0 feet from, when measured at right angles to, the North line of said Section; thence 
West 30.0 feet from and parallel to, said North line of said Section to the Easterly right of way line of the 
Oregon Coast Highway; thence Northerly along said Highway right of way line, to the point of beginning. 

PARCEL 2: 

Commencing at the Southeast corner of Section 17, Township 11 South, Range 11 West, Willamette 
Meridian, in Lincoln County, Oregon; thence North 87 deg. 14' 17" West along the Southerly line of 
Section 17, a distance of 1353.62 feet to the true point of beginning; thence continuing along said 
section line, North 87 deg. 20' 22" West a distance of 83,75 feet; thence North 51 deg. 00' 00" East to 
the Easterly right of way of SE Chestnut Street a distance of 107.29 feet; thence South 00 deg. 13' 26" 
East along said Easterly right of way, a distance of 71.41 feet to the point of beginning. 

Tax Parcel Number: R347233 and R509944 and R518998 



C 

JULY _1, 20( 7 SUPP E ENTAL TRAF C PACT ANALYSIS 

DAVID EVANS 
rihn ASSOCIATES. am 

MN 20, 2007 

Jobb Nu delnc, denim Region Plattner 
0140T Region 2 
dallad SW Philumath Boulevard 
Curvadirs OR:917333 

SU RI NA:44 	Smeet TUE Trip Cap Analysis 

Dear Odd de fah 

This lot sunitmariges additiormi traffic ormtations analyses. per/Mimed at each. of the intersections that. wens! 
evelfousd in the iild th  Street Traffic Impact Antilysis MAE prepared by myself and dated May 2, 2007. TEs 
addbidnal an*sig. evaluates the maximum number pfpeak bomb vehicle hM Nibs that could be 
ancorsanodared while simutrantously providing fOr adequate operators :at cash uf the study ands intersections, 
Remhtbare provided fEr two street mush miimilion scenarios: 11, ext sting Perry blip Road unchanged, anti. dri 
Ferry Slid Redd dasett Perm is mipmEct to 32 i'd  aud de Street via Ash Stremi, 

The analysis shows that an addifibmd 40 nosh hour Mie trips beghod tne mdposod Sotgli Brach Phase. 1 
develorimeof (dm a hunt of 180 peak hour trips) could be added to the Ttit lh  Street approach under 2011 
emadinoris wiffurat causing any (Effie study urea intersections td fail to meet dne 000T mobility seandard of 
0,O0. Furthermore, once the Ferry Slid EiradrUS 101 intersection is etosed (which -wan aSSIIITICd imbed the 
future ,trialysis scenamo), the analysis shows that 160 peak hoer silo Eye (for a MAN of 340 peak hour site 
trips) could he added to 40 12  Street tmder year 2021 condbions while simuirancously meeting the mobility 
standard at cub of the study area 'intersections, 

Ohs analysis is intended to establish a orth cap" for "future development associated with the propertied 
recently annexed into the City of Nawfmrt MI Case File No IMEECEE-Z-07, 

kgrou 

difth  Street Traffic impact Analysis Report 
The /IA presented a proposed development for PnEse of the South Beach that consisted of 40 sinsionmtdmi ty 
residenbal units, 48 condo/townhouse units, and the connial campus of the Oregon. Coast Cominumity CoIlebe 
(OCCted with an assumed enrollment of 1470 student& Eased on dans ottorained. rm Trip Generation, 7 th 

 fridirtim. it was estranged that the proposed thivelotionem woirdd generam 140 totak hour trips: The TIA noted 
that Phase I was expected. to be completed. by year 2011, The anaimMst sheered that all study area 

" docessed in the Ede -peak hour' rulers Pit Saturday mideday, Use of this time period Wag required by ODUE 

9 



 

.8 7  81 

   

10 	0 

_ 35 
140 

John &Tar 
linty 20, 2007 
Pa.ge 2 

interseetions iimornasting of US 101 at 32 21  Streen body Slip Road and 	Sheen, mild be made adequate to 

nommembelatet the proposed development under huildryear conditions, 

May 10,. 207 '1141ipdat e Memorandum 
En a memorandum tinted May 10, 2007 I presented updated trip gencratian estimates and traffic operations 
analyses based on a revised Phiase development scenario, The land uses of the revised scenario inhered 
somewhat fighti the development scenario litresented i die TIA, but the trip generation dig not. The purpose 
of the memorandum ME 10 PrOpOSC a potential alternative tieveloonvnt scenario with a mix of uses that 
wituld disolt in the same number of peak latur vehicle trips as the thinteldomem mix con (Muni in 01e odgim: 
TIN, thereby retnin ing the validity of the "nA analysis resulh, 'The alternative development scenario 
consisted of 8 Isingle family residential units, 15 condo/townhouse units, 0XX201 intrigue with student 
errlreA knew of 2,,thh, and 2 ';`900 squarerforit shopping comer, Table 1 below provides cominarative 
generation for the original and revised Sewall Beach Phase 1 development from the TLA and the May 2007 
memortindurin. respechvel 

liable I. South Beach Phase 1 Attermative 	mut Scenario 
riplo PikaSe 

Lam the 
	 ITE nand 

t se Code 	241-  

Stan 

klttgtde.karuqyaRnsidemte.l yj 
kirtedei instothimer 
kintanitinity Collitge 
Snapping Center 

The desielopmem scerragicts presentedUI Table 1 represent two land use mixes itiat would s"prieratie equivalent 
vehicle Dios, mere are numerous combinations of colicgc, residential hub retail land uses that could he 
developed with identical traffic impacts, 

The May 4000 aximeramium also provided analysis a the Phase development alone under 2021 Ruffin 
coadnionst The 1999 Oregon Highway Plan refunds that the year Modest for firtUre traffic Operations 
analysis is the greater a the hImannigi horizon in the local transportation system plan ORP),. or 15 years, 
whiethwer its gnaws, A 15-your "shinning horizon is greater than that able Newport TiSP, Therefore, tratTie 
operations were analyzed hailer 2021 conditanns, 'The analysis showed that the existing I:anilines could be 
mode adequate to whom:iodate Phase I under future mid& voluble conditions, 

Revised Analysis 
The tial VA and May 2007 memorandum both studied only 'proper* ,  currently owned by Emery 
Insestments,, and the developer Land:waves hati The owner and develciper of the property, has .agirced lia 
innit the extent °hike Phase I South Beach development to no more thm what would. generate 140 peel hour 

ti  Revised eitualuttent eittlittdet winded by Parra 0 IllopriOT, 'OCCC president 

• 
210 DU 43 
2.30. - 
540 FIE 1470 

r- 
74 

8.20 .1000 Its 0 

Total Tri 140,  

Development heenanu 
yedirriontidest TIstips  _ 

Surto rday 
Pk Hr Size 

Alternatil'e 
Phase I Development 

Scenario 
Saturday 

rk fir 
tral 

1 0 



John deter 
Idly 20, DO7 
Page 3 

bodkin: tripid. It is endertgood that additional future clevelooment proposals ky laralwayes will require 
further traffic analysis and appropriate millgabatt of traffic Impacts. The anneesition anti zorie etharige 
application also includes the 16,5 acre CAIR property, winch was not included in previous Ms. 

The Intonate of tliis ffivised analysis is to analyze the trafficet: 11=0mm at the study area intersections under 
yearothimild (2011) and future year 12021) condifiens that accounts liar developrisem Iboth Phase: 1 of the 
South Reach development and the Glih. panned, dit ereforc, this, analysis dpiermines 	riaaffintarm nianhcri of 
peak hem ohmic ttips that COUM he accoinmodaled tiffiale triffitthaneously providing for adequate operationa l 

 at tacit of the study area interthettrinsi It is anduidated drat gm artnexation and zone change will be 
conditioned on ciaptheig total trip generation pomadal at 40' Strum Srt filial each trif nue inittny area intersections 
will operate within the OIXalf mobility sffindaria, 

1 performed traffic opetabona analysis width ciao twat street gonfiguradons and two future years: 

Existin Ferry Shp Road in Place 
tibtalysis year: 20 it 
Maximitei additionai peak hour sire trips at 40th Savo: 40 itgir a wart of 180 peak hour site Mips) 

This centagmadon asisoffies that the existing stopacontiolled Ferry Slip Rind inurrsection .ohla US 101 is open 
to traffic: This eaffiligaration is only analyzed under: sitearsolibuild (201.1) congthong TSa 	ssurnall that the 
trilersection: will be Limed prior to 2021, The reaults„ shown in Table 2, show that with the: addittim of 441) peak 
hour sitic Rids (th, addition ffit the 1 ,10 Phase 1 trips) ird 4th f  Street the vac redo at the: intersection of US 101 and 
40th  Street will increase slightly over Phase I total conninons. All .thownnenis al this tithersechon tare 
ex..neetrel reptiain weiffirdow the Incitidity sitandarg„ 

The, cx,rgroning  initerseetion tinfk7 this scenario is US 101 at Ferry Stip Road, Thc cornhadation of 
background traffic growth and the South Beach Phase 1 development (140 trials) expected to result hi a We 
ratio of 0519 for the wcstbffiffig left rturvemeni, The intersection cad agicOMModate sotrne additional triE tot 
the US 101 Mainline with no change as the ffitical the mho. Howevine when additional peak bffirat site trips at 
4091  Sheet exceed 40, the critical thie ratio reaches OSO, which is equivalent to the O4t10'1 thOtility sinanddrd, 
„A vie rand in excess of 0,80 a present nacteptathe traffic operatirms. 

Therefore, assumffig that the existing stopffiontrolle8 Ferry Slip Road isPerseetion ibrithltS 101 is open, that 
iffiersemion (dad other study area intersectional will ()berate within the Onur mobility stalsdard the land 
annexed and. rezoned (Phaeu 1 ofSouth Beftell anti the (Atha Parcel) is subither to the corthition thm Saanday 
mideduy peek :Pour trips are limited to 180, 

"' Rased cm anotatte triprates contained. ist IHE Trip Genet ition as it Edition fiat Saturday mid-day. 

The anplicable smibilityritatagard der US WI (Statewide Highway, not fitightroute) in a vac ratio of 0„811. Source: 

11",abie 6, 1999 Oregon Highway Plan: 



Z1 0) 

09'0 09:0 
d!I 	I IWTI 

laolls O0 ak: tot Si I IA 	, 
711.1S 

6111 	 Fro 	two 

pOZ 1101 

11 1 	IRS SISAIVIIV SUO'llp1,0 tn.) as14,4u1 	. z 4icri 

in'tj 	51:0 	Z.1:0 I. CO 	L'91 	,L9.: 	 Val „Ili 	1. 	SI 1 

	

(K.303,, Oril) 	.v.)051 	putio3fg 	68 
. 	gh,t1 10,4, 

	

0074 	.aseg ! -lava 
:15711d 	 ag.Mfd 

Jstald 
pork 	Au 

-11"0-111. Mlliamjoi 

9BOZ 
11(.S.0 101 

UI 	Ti 44 UIggio)nlizz sT TçiUdun1I1OIUI. mini Trois dpis Agan lung piginogg Wig in:Jo ;00)000g 'opC 

 

,111.1 -OM ladc- c." aq 01pargdx0 an Oen Aiosugp 1uou10101000 ,IED444 1.1 sad5K1 asn pug, lig ginsin AVZt!iAal 

p3SLT 'weld going inao0000 o01) ii1000inid spg deing00p 01 Ilio100 gon1 powingig 00:014 SnuMn oqj 'szu:,13 
o) 00sop g 13WE zlignn 0)..p )sig1o4s000 griagghoModol 0001 'loons ciwodold ol oz000100) sago) 

g -gT snosuna qinglig puJ. igAn) 014)Si 010ou00 mpogred 40 '100p-pga kepirnog s) gamin grog 0000s2Ip 
04)11)00znp t0I  to. pup 'EFLTatLIR LU 10 4,RATqa,,i 11191.1P).(X1 110 il11,E3L135 dr:n o.0 01010 sgi onion looloopin 

zoj p01011. s (oq '::', ,PAEAlpaeri Jo logurg oql puoicaq 101)01111.000 jo pixel »»qg jo iptuu 103q3 ploy 001 pinogs 1 :1 
001114014ANI EVIA)StWOI 1.85130a1Ogi 

-amoIrs vartrA, uo9a.astint.11 Immo - uolvtalmup pa?,!itmii!rs 

ggig 0) potion 1101 0g1g4 

.4n044 And 4113p-pgu 40poring aing 011111000) azia 00 .1.3.011)01 (parad 	aq) pun t100)))0 luring UI, 0004g) 

•00:•zzo pur,, ppxzw.uo 1.0001  .3401 Rrerc lOw 4:geziom 10(10 1141 ulkivpys, 10330116o film 	 00413 475pra$ 

3141 "ppSOF) S!. • 01 SO 51p,* 001,1a.31.41001 pek'S dits. /Wag pnalluoo,dins .',109s!..x01 alp imp gapans-sv 'axt[arotit 

gurgivaris liggnozu 3)01 0)000X3 01 1109:055311.14 gill y, (MIL .3./A 	astwo 

prom ot,Ljo sspa-vo Pans 10 	•sf..11-11 dps "nog Trod 	iingnioto i0Jl 00 , 100100001)0 51 notigz '(5800 

3.0 0410 301 iron ol 	0100000 	111001I9 	51.? 	Snit) Lor.„-losaapi: Pozuguffls atti, luvpums /1)5,(!qoal 

31)4 [01(1 .103(10  ring)) 1)3101) jo  ing 13 Lpve, omodo mo00 00117:os111vi0 zip 10 101111001010110 2u!tur,344;71 punogisam 

mirtiopasixls! 	4.,,OW1 	sl 	sdul znis Inoti 	Ori: Jo uoqtppe 0q. 111!"4 	Z 31c;v:i, sV 

	

'suonozsi3lu! nan., Xpras 	0(11011110 suoyando --,NEnboptl. Jo; 01uip3ngid 145cpxyaninms 

10t14z0 pampounuo:.ot 111) 1)e103 130.49 41140  113 stila 1131131 mom good 091  ggoonzppg 00 1)0(0315) 111013 1.1H 111,11Q9 

Jo ( 10313Lt4 tooki  ,citt [ 	tooti vold 	ay  011 ttoo !pin LII rap motis slo ,oal sisterly Raimme,i.  un 

10111IS 706 [DT 	uog000101-0o 	pug 1-10POD-PP 1-1 1130  awl Onar-B auo 0000 11 110•0 1 1311,10  
-001130000010 1101 imp 00)000000 gyp 00010000 agg -owls nsgi 00000; 0-10 kr!A 1111110041 „WI 01 paiuoro, 	goo 04 
g00 1101 parozu 11:1)41.10 trapxisialui pras dri s Snag nwicr; :)tp uickg Rdtr, 1311(41525 xi..) Jo 	puv pzsor 

LW pEON 	Suad 'TWO SNK-TISSe ogig-000) znag airLICIJ aga. 	 ap 90u11311103 sl,s'iciuu awl 

(sd-Lij 	jiunt y"°°T  000  0' 1°110  " 110 119I 1  400 LO,U .r .ipv 	 1i1n1110 pm, 

zoz 
pason puolf dps 

aft7,1 

	

LOOZ 	iCRE: 
aupf 



DAVID LVANS AND ASSOC/ATES, N. 
4 

itthft deldr 
Idly 20, k0 
Page 5 

or use. This translates to toughly 20-30 vithick trips during the PM peak hour'', Very little published trip 
generation gata exists for the Sanniday mkhday peak pericit, However, itidustrial L i generatteri iS typically 
lower guring weekerds him it ming weekdays, ThomPore, it is reeconabie to conclude that if a concrete brach 
plant is constimeted, the combeited trips *awe:riled from gig plant end Phase 1 tHihe South Beach devektprneint 
0411 be kegs than the 180 trip cap (and sigalicandy less ham the 3,40 did cap once Ferry Slip Road is closed). 

Ctottdusism 
The analysis shows that oP additiotal 40 peak how' she trips beyond the proposed South Beitch Phase 1 
develohment Iliar a total of180 peak hour site trips) could be added to the 40 6  Street air:grouch meter 2011, 
cormhtiche without causing any of:the study mat Mterseettons to fah to meet the °Dar mobility standard of 
0,80, Fiarthermore, once the Fong Shp .RidadlUS 101 interstiction is &teed (Mich was assubtard under the 
future: arictlysis scemicH, the analysis shows that 160 peak hour site trips Nor a. total of 340 peak how site: 
trips) could be added to 40 11  Stmet rigida year 2021 conditions while chritthaturouslyntocting the mobility 
standard at each. of the study area dirtexceetions. 

Sincerely, 

Christian Sinuttirt, PE 
Treanspactation .Enprocer 

3 



CITY OF NEWPORT 

ORDINANCE NO. 2045 

AN ORDINANCE TO REPEAL AND REPLACE THE TRANSPORTATION 
SYSTEM PLAN ELEMENT OF THE NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN, AND 

TO AMEND RELATED PROVISIONS OF THE 
NEWPORT ZONING AND SUBDIVISION CODES 

(Newport File No. 2-CP-11) 

Summary of Findings: 

1. Since 2006 the City of Newport, Lincoln County, and Oregon Department of 
Transportation (ODOT) have worked collaboratively to update the Transportation 
System Plan (TSP) element of the Newport Comprehensive Plan, Newport Zoning 
Ordinance, and Newport Subdivision Ordinance to put in place policies and 
implementation strategies for establishing a coordinated, multi-modal transportation 
network that meets Newport's current and future needs. The last comprehensive 
update to the Newport TSP occurred in 1997. 

2. This collaboration led to the adoption of a local street plan for areas north of 
the Yaquina Bay Bridge and resulted in a comprehensive update to the City of 
Newport's Bike and Pedestrian Plan. Both of these plans were completed in 
2008. 

3. As these plans were prepared, it became evident that much of the future 
growth in Newport will occur in its South Beach neighborhood. The parties further 
recognized that capacity limits of the Yaquina Bay Bridge and ODOT's existing 
mobility standard for US 101 severely restrict long term growth opportunities in 
this portion of the City. 

4. An alternate mobility standard is a tool that ODOT can use to allow more 
vehicle trips to be generated onto US 101 than is permissible under current state 
law. ODOT indicated a willingness to develop such a standard as part of a 
coordinated effort with the City, County and stakeholders in South Beach to 
identify future transportation system enhancements needed to improve the flow of 
traffic on the highway. This effort was undertaken considering a 20 year planning 
period, in accordance with Statewide Planning Goal 12 and the Transportation 
Planning Rule contained in Chapter 660, Division 12 of the Oregon 
Administrative Rules (OARs). 

5. The proposal assumes that the Yaquina Bay Bridge will not be replaced within 
20 years, and, further, that this constraint to traffic flow justifies establishing the 
alternate mobility standard. At some point; however, the bridge will need to be 
replaced and the City of Newport will continue to engage with ODOT to develop 

Page 1 ORDINANCE No. 2045, Repealing and Replacing the "Transportation Section" of the Newport 

c.breves
Typewritten Text
CC.V.A4



10. The finalized proposal includes the repeal and replacement of the TSP 
element of Chapter 5 of the Newport Comprehensive Plan (Ordinance No. 1621 
(as amended)) with a new plan that sets out policies in support of an alternate 
mobility standard for US 101 to allow higher levels of congestion on the highway. 
In turn, this will provide increased opportunities for economic development and 
reduce the costs of transportation system improvements associated with 
development. New policies and related revisions include: 

a. Direction to establish a trip budget program for lands within the Newport 
Urban Growth Boundary (UGB) located between the Yaquina Bay Bridge 

nd 
and SE 62 street to more effectively track where growth is occurring to 
ensure that it is progressing in line with projections and to allow for 
adjustments if it is not. 

b. Updates to Functional Classification Maps that illustrate the City's existing 
and future transportation system. 

c. Identification of enhancements that should be made to the transportation 
system in South Beach to improve traffic flow along US 101. This includes 
likely funding sources, and constitutes the maximum level of improvement 
that can be made short of replacing or expanding the Yaquina Bay Bridge. 

d. Support for the establishment of traffic impact analysis standards that 
apply to new development anywhere in the City so that decision makers 
will have information they need to fully understand the impacts and 
effectiveness of proposed mitigation on the transportation system. 

e. Street frontage improvement requirements for new development to the 
extent that such requirements are proportional to the impact of the project. 

Adoption by reference of transportation refinement plans that have been 
completed since the TSP was last amended, including the South Beach 
Peninsula Transportation Refinement Plan (2010), the Agate Beach 
Wayside Improvements Concept Plan (2011), and the Coho/Brant 
Infrastructure Refinement Plan (2012). 

g. Updates to project tables to reflect 2012 cost estimates, align priorities 
with current policy direction and likely funding sources, and to eliminate 
completed or redundant projects. 

h. A commitment from the City of Newport to find long term solutions that 
sufficiently address the existing capacity and structural limitations of the 
Yaquina Bay Bridge, particularly in light of the Oregon Department of 
Transportation's decision to place the bridge on the "Weight-Restricted 
Bridges on Major State Routes" list. 

Page 3 ORDINANCE No. 2045,  Repealing and Replacing the "Transportation Section" of the Newport 



11. The proposed new Chapter 14.43 to the Zoning Ordinance element of the 
Newport Municipal Code (Ordinance No. 1308 (as amended)) describes the 
mechanics of how the trip budget program will work. It creates a zoning overlay 
district for lands inside the Newport UGB between the Yaquina Bay Bridge and 
SE 62nd  Street. The overlay is divided into Transportation Analysis Zones (TAZs). 
Each TAZ is allocated a total number of trips that is based upon the amount of 
growth projected within a 20 year timeframe. City will be responsible for 
deducting trips from the budget as new development occurs. The new code 
anticipates variations in growth and holds back 10% of the trips across all TAZs 
as a reserve that can be allocated where needed. Further, the code requires that 
a comprehensive review be performed by the City and State in 10 years or upon 
allocation of 65% of the trips in any TAZ. A developer may also mitigate a 
project's impact on the transportation system or enhance the system such that 
additional vehicle trips would be permitted. 

12. The proposed new Chapter 14.44 to the Zoning Ordinance element of the 
Newport Municipal Code (Ordinance No. 1308 (as amended)) authorizes the City 
to require frontage improvements for new development or redevelopment that 
require a building permit and places demands on transportation facilities or city 
utilities. It includes standards for determining the types of needed improvements, 
authorizes the City to charge a fee in lieu of requiring the installation of frontage 
improvements in certain circumstances, identifies processes by which public 
right-of-way can be created, and sets out requirements for creating access 
easements. The provisions of this chapter would apply citywide. 

13. The proposed new Chapter 14.45 to the Zoning Ordinance element of the 
Newport Municipal Code (Ordinance No. 1308 (as amended)) requires that 
developers conduct traffic impact analysis for projects that significantly impact the 
transportation system. It identifies how the analysis is to be performed and the 
process the City is to use to evaluate requests. Further, this new chapter sets out 
criteria for evaluating the analysis to ensure that transportation facilities are 
adequate to handle the additional traffic; requires that improvements be made by 
a developer proportional to the project's impacts if the transportation system is 
not adequate; and provides developers the option of paying a fee in lieu of 
constructing needed transportation system improvements, in certain 
circumstances. The provisions of this chapter would apply citywide. 

14. Targeted revisions are proposed to the Subdivision Ordinance element of the 
Newport Municipal Code (Ordinance No. 1990 (as amended)). They include 
clarifications for when public improvements are required in association with a 
subdivision plat and how the improvements can be guaranteed; an allowance for 
payment in lieu of constructing a required improvement as outlined in the new 
Chapter 45; and a requirement that traffic impact analysis be conducted and trips 
allocated to new subdivision lots consistent with the provisions of new Chapters 
43 and 45. 

Page 4 ORDINANCE No. 2045,  Repealing and Replacing the "Transportation Section" of the Newport 



15. When considered as a whole, analysis performed by Parametrix 
demonstrates that the City of Newport can anticipate significant increases in 
vehicle traffic and other transportation modes over the next 20 years. The 
resulting recommendations identify a range of transportation system 
mprovements that can reasonably be made to accommodate this demand and 

facilitate traffic flow along US 101 and US 20 to the extent possible recognizing 
the bridge's capacity limitations. 

16. The proposed amendments to the zoning and subdivision ordinances are a 
public necessity which furthers the general welfare of the citizens of Newport. 
The proposed measures establish a method for the City to more accurately 
assess where growth is occurring and how it is impacting the transportation 
system. The revisions ensure that new development offsets impacts to the 
transportation system in an equitable manner and put in place a trip budget 
program that quantifies available capacity on US 101, while providing persons 
interested in developing in South Beach with a clear, predictable path for doing 
so. This promotes economic development and increases opportunities for 
commercial and industrial uses to locate in South Beach. In turn, this may 
decrease local users' reliance on the bridge for needed services and employment 
over the long term. 

17. Detailed findings have been prepared showing how the proposed 
amendments satisfy procedural and substantive requirements for amendments to 
the City's Transportation System Plan and related implementing ordinances, as 
well as applicable Statewide Planning Goals and the Transportation Planning 
Rule. The findings are contained in a document titled "Newport South Beach 
Findings to Suppod Comprehensive Plan and Code Amendments," prepared by 
Angelo Planning Group on August 24, 2012 and adopted herein to supplement 
these findings. 

18. In August of 2007, a settlement agreement was signed by the State of 
Oregon, City of Newport, Emery Investments, Inc., Landwaves, Inc., GVR 
Investments, and the Oregon Coast Community College District (Settlement 
Agreement). The Settlement Agreement authorized a specific number of vehicle 
trips to be generated onto US 101 at SE 40 th  Street from South Beach properties 
annexed with Ordinance No. 1922. In performance of its obligations under the 
Settlement Agreement, the City will reserve trips out of the TAZ trip budget for 
this area for the exclusive use of these properties. Since the Settlement 
Agreement does not have an explicit expiration date, it is appropriate that the 
trips be reserved for a period of ten years from the date that final plats for the 
properties were recorded, or preliminary plat approval in the case where no final 
plat has been recorded. This approach is consistent with limitations contained in 
ORS 92.040 regarding vesting of prior land use regulations with land division 
approvals. Any unused trips would be returned to the TAZ trip budget once the 
ten year period has lapsed. 

Page 5 ORDINANCE No. 2045, Repealing and Replacing the "Transportation Section" of the Newport 



19. On August 27, 2012, the Newport P anning Commission held a public hearing 
on the proposed amendments and voted to recommend adoption of the 
amendments. 

20. On July 9, 2012, the Department of Land Conservation & Development 
(DLCD) was properly provided notice of the proposed legislative amendments. 
Notice of the City Council hearing was provided to stakeholders and interested 
parties in the South Beach area; public/private utilities and agencies; and 
affected city departments on October 4, 2012. Notice of the hearing was 
published in the Newport News-Times on October 10, 2012. 

21. The City Council held a work session on September 17, 2012 and public 
hearing on October 15, 2012, regarding the question of the proposed 
amendments. The Council voted in favor of its adoption after considering the 
recommendation of the Planning Commission and all evidence and argument in 
the record. 

22. In adopting these amendments, the Council recognizes that successful 
implementation of the trip budget program set forth in the proposed Chapter 
14.43 requires close coordination with Lincoln County and the Oregon 
Department of Transportation. Both organizations will need to adopt rule 
changes. For Lincoln County, this involves amendments to its land use plans and 
regulations to put in place the trip budget for unincorporated areas that fall within 
the boundaries of the South Beach Transportation Overlay Zone and to authorize 
the City to track consumption of trips associated with new development on these 
lands. With regards to ODOT, the Oregon Transportation Commission must 
amend the Oregon Highway Plan to put in place the alternate mobility standard 
for US 101 that provides the additional trip capacity built into the trip budget 
program. The City cannot reasonably implement a trip budget until these 
organizations have acted. 

23. Information in the record, including affidavits of mailing and publication, 
demonstrate that appropriate public notification was provided for both the 
Planning Commission and City Council public hearings. 

THE CITY OF NEWPORT ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1.  The above findings, those contained in the document titled "Newpoit South 
Beach Findings to Suppon` Comprehensive Plan and Code Amendments," prepared by 
Angelo Planning Group on August 24, 2012, as set forth in Exhibit A, and technical 
memorandums prepared by Parametrix, listed as Exhibits B1 through B5, attached and 
incorporated herein, are hereby adopted as support for this Ordinance and the Council's 
following amendments. 

Section 2.  The Transportation System Plan Element (§5; pps 152a - 152ab) of Chapter 
5 "Public Facilities" of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Ordinance No. 1621 (as 
amended) is hereby repealed and replaced with the text entitled "Newport 

Page 6 ORDINANCE No. 2045,  Repealing and Replacing the "Transportation Section" of the Newport 



Transportation System Plan", as set forth in Exhibit C, attached and incorporated herein 
by this reference. 

Section 3.  Title XIV, Chapters 14.43, "Procedural Requirements," through 14.51, "Fees" 
of the Zoning Ordinance element of the Newport Municipal Code (Ordinance No. 1308 
(as amended)) are hereby renumbered as Chapters14A6 through 14.54, respectively. 

Section 4.  Title XIV, the Zoning Ordinance element of the Newport Municipal Code 
(Ordinance No. 1308 (as amended)), is hereby amended to include a new Chapter 
14.43 entitled "South Beach Transportation Overlay Zone (SBTOZ)" as set forth in 
Exhibit D. The overlay zone is as described on the map and legal description prepared 
by John Thatcher, PLS, dated October 30, 2012, attached and incorporated herein as 
Exhibit E. 

Section 5.  Title XIV, the Zoning Ordinance element of the Newport Municipal Code 
(Ordinance No. 1308 (as amended)), is hereby amended to include a new Chapter 
14.44 entitled "Transportation Standards", as set forth in Exhibit F, attached and 
incorporated herein by this reference. 

Section 6.  Title XIV, the Zoning Ordinance element of the Newport Municipal Code 
(Ordinance No. 1308 (as amended)), is hereby amended to include a new Chapter 
14.45 entitled "Traffic Impact Analysis," as set forth in Exhibit G, attached and 
incorporated herein by this reference. 

Section 7.  The introductory language of Subsection 13.05.040(A) and Subsection 
13.05.040(A)(5), of Title XIII, Land Division, the Subdivision Ordinance element of the 
Newport Municipal Code (Ordinance No. 1990 (as amended)), are hereby amended as 
follows: 

"A. 	The following public improvements are required for all land 
divisions, except where a subdivision plat is reconfiguring or establishing 
rights-of-way for future public streets:" 

"5. 	Sidewalks.  Required sidewalks shall be constructed in conjunction 
with the street improvements except as specified below: 

a. Delayed Sidewalk Construction.  If sidewalks are designed 
contiguous with the curb, the subdivider may delay the placement of 
concrete for the sidewalks by depositing with the city a cash bond 
equal to 115 percent of the estimated cost of the sidewalk. In such 
areas, sections of sidewalk shall be constructed by the owner of 
each lot as building permits are issued. Upon installation and 
acceptance by the city engineer, the land owner shall be 
reimbursed for the construction of the sidewalk from the bond. The 
amount of the reimbursement shall be in proportion to the footage 

Page 7 ORDINANCE No. 2045, Repealing and Replacing the "Transportation Section" of the Newport 



of sidewalk installed compared with the cash bond deposited and 
any interested earned on the deposit. 

b. Commencing three (3) years after filing of the final plat, or a date 
otherwise specified by the city, the city engineer shall cause all 
remaining sections of sidewalk to be constructed, using the 
remaining funds from the aforementioned cash bond. Any surplus 
funds shall be deposited in the city's general fund to cover 
administrative costs. Any shortfall will be paid from the general 
fund. 

c. Notwithstanding the above, a developer may guarantee installation 
of required sidewalks in an Improvement Agreement as provided in 
Section 13.05.090(C)." 

Subsections 13.05.040(A)(1) - (4) remain unamended and in full force and effect. 

Section 8. Subsection 13.05.070(A) of Title XIII, Land Division, the Subdivision 
Ordinance element of the Newport Municipal Code (Ordinance No. 1990 (as amended)), 
is hereby amended, to insert new Subsections A(13) and (14), and to renumber existing 
Subsection A(13) as A(15), as follows: 

"13. A Trip Assessment Letter, if required by Chapter 14.43. 

14. A Traffic Impact Analysis, if required by Chapter 14.45. 

15. Other materials that the applicant believes relevant or that may be 
required by the city." 

All other subsections of 13.05.070(A) and Subsections (B) - (E) of that section remain 
unamended and in full force and effect. 

Section 9. Subsection 13.05.090(B) of Title XIII, Land Division, the Subdivision 
Ordinance element of the Newport Municipal Code (Ordinance No. 1990 (as amended)) 
is hereby amended as follows: 

"B. Provision of Improvements. It shall be the responsibility of the 
developer to install all required improvements and to repair any existing 
improvements damaged in the development of the property. The 
installation of improvements and repair of damage shall be completed 
prior to final plat approval. Except as provided in Subsection C., or where 
payment in lieu of constructing a required improvement is allowed by City 
and has been paid by developer per Chapter 14.45, the final plat will not 
be approved until improvements are installed to the specifications of the 
city and "as constructed" drawings are given to the city and approved by 
the city engineer. The developer shall warrant the materials and 

Page 8 ORDINANCE No. 2045, Repealing and Replacing the "Transportation Section" of the Newport 



Signed by the Mayor on 	 , 2012. 

Mark McConnell, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

workmanship of all required public improvements for a period of one year 
from the date the city accepts the public improvements." 

Section 10.  City shall reserve trips out of the TAZ budget for properties annexed with 
Ordinance No. 1922, per the Settlement Agreement, as follows: For properties owned 
by Emery Investments, Inc. and/or Landwaves, Inc. 130 weekday PM peak hour trips, 
plus an additional 127 trips at such time as Ash Street is improved between Ferry Slip 
Road and SE 40 th  Street. With respect to properties owned by GVR Investments 47 
trips will be reserved, plus an additional 43 trips once Ash Street is improved. The City 
will reserve 20 trips for the Oregon Coast Community College property, once the Ash 
Street improvements are constructed. These trips will be reserved for a period of ten 
years from the date that final plats for the properties were recorded, or preliminary plat 
approval in the case where no final plat has been recorded. Any unused trips will accrue 
back to the TAZ trip budget once this ten year period has lapsed. 

Section 11.  Section 4, adopting Chapter 14.43, of this ordinance shall take effect at such 
time as both Lincoln County adopts corresponding implementation measures for 
unincorporated lands with the boundary of the zoning overlay and the Oregon 
Transportation Commission amends the Oregon Highway Plan to put in place the 
alternate mobility standard for US 101. 

Section 12.  Except as provided in Section 11, this ordinance shall take effect 30 days 
after passage. 

Date adopted and read by title only: November 5, 2012 

Margai:et M. awker, City Recorder 

Page 9 ORDINANCE No. 2045, Repealing and Replacing the "Transportation Section" of the Newport 



 



c.breves
Typewritten Text
CC.VI.A























 



c.breves
Typewritten Text
CC.VII.A



 



 Agenda Item # VII.B.  
 Meeting Date February 3, 2014 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 
City Of Newport, Oregon 

 
 
Issue/Agenda Title: Approval of ODOT ROW Services Agreement and Authorization of Additional Funding 
for Hwy 101 Pedestrian Safety Project 
 
Prepared By: TEG          Dept Head Approval: ________    City Manager Approval:    
 
 
Issue Before the Council:    
 
In order to comply with ODOT project requirements, the City needs to execute a Right of Way 
Services Intergovernmental Agreement with the State. This agreement identifies each parties 
responsibilities regarding right-of-way acquisition for the project, and defines potential financial 
obligations the City may incur when the State conducts the services as identified in the contract. 
 
The terms of the agreement commit the City to pay up to $5,000 of costs for services performed by 
the State.  Furthermore, the agreement obligates the City to ensure “that sufficient funds are available 
and authorized for expenditure to finance costs of this Agreement within Agency’s current 
appropriation or limitation of current budget. Agency is willing and able to finance all, or its pro-rata 
share of all, costs and expenses incurred in the Project up to its maximum.” 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Approve the agreement and authorize the obligation of additional funds. 
 
Proposed Motion: 
 
I move to approve the US Hwy 101 Pedestrian Safety Improvements Project Intergovernmental 
Agreement for Right of Way Services with the Oregon Department of Transportation and authorize the 
Mayor and City Manager of the City of Newport to execute said agreement. I further move to obligate 
$150,000 of Infrastructure Fee funds in fiscal year 2014/2015, increasing the City’s total financial 
contribution to this project to $202,000. 
 
Key Facts and Information Summary:    
 
The City executed an agreement with the Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT) in July of 
2012 as part of the Flexible Funds Program 2011 to fund eight pedestrian crossing improvements on 
Highway 101 between Bayley Street to the south, and 15th Street to the north. The initial ODOT 
project cost estimate included in this agreement was $502,000 of which the City would contribute 
10%, or $52,000. The City’s portion of these funds were budgeted in the FY12/13 budget. 
 



Since the execution of this initial agreement, ODOT has revised the project cost estimate to $852,000, 
resulting in a funding shortfall of $350,000.  The City met with ODOT staff on several occasions to 
discuss the reasons for the cost overruns and sources of funds to cover the shortfall.  The ODOT Bike 
and Pedestrian Program is willing to contribute an additional $100,000 toward the project as long as 
the project continues with the initial scope of work and completes the improvements at all eight 
crossing locations.  Also, ODOT staff will be presenting a request to the Region 5 Area Managers for 
an additional $100,000 at their monthly meeting on Monday, February 3rd.  Results from this meeting 
will hopefully be included as part of tonight’s presentation. 
 
This leaves a shortfall of $150,000 which Staff has tentatively agreed to fund, pending Council 
approval.  These funds will not be needed until FY14/15 since the project construction will not occur 
until the fall of 2014 or early winter of 2015. 
 
Other Alternatives Considered: 
 

 Cancel the project. Under the terms of the initial agreement, the City would be obligated to 
reimburse all funds expended to date on the project which to date is approximately $130,000. 

 
City Council Goals: 
 

 N/A 
 
Attachment List: 
 

 US Hwy 101 Pedestrian Safety Improvements Project Intergovernmental Agreement for Right 
of Way Services 

 
Fiscal Notes: 
 
The Infrastructure Fee, per Council Resolution, can be spent on any infrastructure related 
construction project.  In FY 13/14, revenues from the Infrastructure Fee are estimated at $495,000.  
Revenues for FY 14/15 have not yet been obligated to any project so these funds would be available 
to fund an additional $150,000 toward this project. 



CC.VII.B2 
Misc. Contracts and Agreements 

No. 29396 

Key No. 18122 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
FOR RIGHT OF WAY SERVICES 

US 101: Pedestrian Safety Improvements 
City of Newport 

 
THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into by and between the STATE OF OREGON, 
acting by and through its Department of Transportation, hereinafter referred to as “State;” 
and CITY OF NEWPORT, acting by and through its elected officials, hereinafter referred 
to as “Agency,” both herein referred to individually or collectively as “Party” or “Parties.” 
 
RECITALS 

1. By the authority granted in Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS) 190.110, 283.110, 
366.572 and 366.576, state agencies may enter into agreements with units of local 
government or other state agencies for the performance of any or all functions and 
activities that a Party to the agreement, its officers, or agents have the authority to 
perform. 

 
2. By the authority granted in ORS 366.425, State may accept deposits of money or an 

irrevocable letter of credit from any county, city, road district, person, firm, or 
corporation for the performance of work on any public highway within the State. When 
said money or a letter of credit is deposited, State shall proceed with the Project. 
Money so deposited shall be disbursed for the purpose for which it was deposited. 

 
3. US 101 (Oregon Coast Highway) is a part of the state highway system under the 

jurisdiction and control of the Oregon Transportation Commission (OTC). 
 
4. This Agreement shall define roles and responsibilities of the Parties regarding the real 

property to be used as part of right of way for road, street or construction of public 
improvement. The scope and funding may be further described in Local Agency 
Flexible Funds Program Agreement No. 28487. Hereinafter, all acts necessary to 
accomplish services in this Agreement shall be referred to as “Project.” 

 
NOW THEREFORE, the premises being in general as stated in the foregoing Recitals, it 
is agreed by and between the Parties hereto as follows: 
 
TERMS OF AGREEMENT 

1. Under such authority, to accomplish the objectives in Agreement No. 28487, State 
and Agency agree to perform certain right of way activities shown in “Special 
Provisions – Exhibit A,” attached hereto and by this reference made a part hereof. If 
the State performs right of way services on behalf of the Agency, under no conditions 
shall Agency’s obligations for said services exceed a maximum of $5,000, including 
all expenses, unless agreed upon by both Parties. 



City of Newport / State of Oregon – Dept. of Transportation 
Agreement No. 29396 

Page 2 of 20 

 
2. The work shall begin on the date all required signatures are obtained and shall be 

completed no later than January 1, 2015, on which date this Agreement automatically 
terminates unless extended by a fully executed amendment. 

 
3. The process to be followed by the Parties in carrying out this Agreement is set out in 

Exhibit A. 
 
4. It is further agreed both Parties will strictly follow the rules, policies, and procedures of 

the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, 
as amended, ORS Chapter 35 and the “State Right of Way Manual.” 

 
STATE OBLIGATIONS 

1. State shall perform the work described in Special Provisions – Exhibit A. 
 
2. With the exception of work related to appraisals, State shall not enter into any 

subcontracts for any of the work scheduled under this Agreement without obtaining 
prior written approval from Agency. 

 
3. If the State performs right of way services on behalf of the Agency, State shall 

perform the service under this Agreement as an independent contractor and shall be 
exclusively responsible for all costs and expenses related to its employment of 
individuals to perform the work under this Agreement including, but not limited to, 
retirement contributions, workers’ compensation, unemployment taxes, and state and 
federal income tax withholdings. 

 
4. State’s right of way contact person for this Project is Georgine Gleason, Senior Right 

of Way Agent, 455 Airport Road SE, Building A, Salem, Oregon 97301; phone: (503) 
986-2604; email: georgine.n.gleason@odot.state.or.us, or assigned designee upon 
individual’s absence. State shall notify the other Party in writing of any contact 
changes during the term of this Agreement. 

 
AGENCY OBLIGATIONS 

1. Agency shall perform the work described in Special Provisions – Exhibit A. 
 
2. Agency certifies, at the time this Agreement is executed, that sufficient funds are 

available and authorized for expenditure to finance costs of this Agreement within 
Agency’s current appropriation or limitation of current budget. Agency is willing and 
able to finance all, or its pro-rata share of all, costs and expenses incurred in the 
Project up to its maximum. 

 
3. Agency may utilize its own staff or subcontract any of the work scheduled under this 

Agreement provided Agency receives prior written approval of any staff, consultant or 
contractor by the State’s Region Right of Way office. 

mailto:georgine.n.gleason@odot.state.or.us


City of Newport / State of Oregon – Dept. of Transportation 
Agreement No. 29396 

Page 3 of 20 

 
4. Agency represents that this Agreement is signed by personnel authorized to do so on 

behalf of Agency. 
 
5. Agency’s right of way contact person for this Project is Tim Gross, Public Works 

Administrator, 169 SW Coast Highway, Newport, Oregon 97365; phone: (541) 574-
3369; email: t.gross@newportoregon.gov, or assigned designee upon individual’s 
absence. Agency shall notify the other Party in writing of any contact information 
changes during the term of this Agreement. 

 
PAYMENT FOR SERVICES AND EXPENDITURES 

1. In consideration for the services performed by State (as identified in the attached 
Exhibit A), Agency agrees to pay or reimburse State a maximum amount of $5,000. 
Said maximum amount shall include reimbursement for all expenses, including travel 
expenses. Travel expenses shall be reimbursed to State in accordance with the 
current Oregon Department of Administrative Services’ rates. Any expenditure beyond 
federal participation will be from, or reimbursed from, Agency funds. Payment in 
Agency and/or federal funds in any combination shall not exceed said maximum, 
unless agreed upon by both Parties. 

 
2. Agency agrees to reimburse salaries and payroll reserves of State employees working 

on Project, direct costs, costs of rental equipment used, and per-diem expenditures. 
 
GENERAL PROVISIONS 

1. This Agreement may be terminated by either Party upon thirty (30) days’ notice, in 
writing and delivered by certified mail or in person, under any of the following 
conditions: 

 
a. If either Party fails to provide services called for by this Agreement within the time 

specified herein or any extension thereof. 
 

b. If either Party fails to perform any of the other provisions of this Agreement or so 
fails to pursue the work as to endanger performance of this Agreement in 
accordance with its terms, and after receipt of written notice fails to correct such 
failures within ten (10) days or such longer period as may be authorized. 

 
c. If Agency fails to provide payment of its share of the cost of the Project. 

 
d. If State fails to receive funding, appropriations, limitations or other expenditure 

authority sufficient to allow State, in the exercise of its reasonable administrative 
discretion, to continue to make payments for performance of this Agreement. 

 

mailto:t.gross@newportoregon.gov


City of Newport / State of Oregon – Dept. of Transportation 
Agreement No. 29396 

Page 4 of 20 

e. If federal or state laws, regulations or guidelines are modified or interpreted in 
such a way that either the work under this Agreement is prohibited or State is 
prohibited from paying for such work from the planned funding source. 

2. Any termination of this Agreement shall not prejudice any rights or obligations accrued 
to the Parties prior to termination. 

 
3. Agency acknowledges and agrees that State, the Oregon Secretary of State’s Office, 

the federal government, and their duly authorized representatives shall have access 
to the books, documents, papers, and records of Agency which are directly pertinent 
to this Agreement for the purpose of making audit, examination, excerpts, and 
transcripts for a period of six (6) years after final payment. Copies of applicable 
records shall be made available upon request. Payment for costs of copies is 
reimbursable by State. 

 
4. Agency shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, regulations, executive 

orders and ordinances applicable to the work under this Agreement, including, without 
limitation, the provisions of ORS 279B.220, 279B.225, 279B.230, 279B.235 and 
279B.270 incorporated herein by reference and made a part hereof. Without limiting 
the generality of the foregoing, Agency expressly agrees to comply with (i) Title VI of 
Civil Rights Act of 1964; (ii) Title V and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973; 
(iii) the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 and ORS 659A.142; (iv) all regulations 
and administrative rules established pursuant to the foregoing laws; and (v) all other 
applicable requirements of federal and state civil rights and rehabilitation statutes, 
rules and regulations. 

5. All employers that employ subject workers who work under this Agreement in the 
State of Oregon shall comply with ORS 656.017 and provide the required workers’ 
compensation coverage unless such employers are exempt under ORS 656.126. 
Employers Liability insurance with coverage limits of not less than $500,000 must be 
included. Both Parties shall ensure that each of its subcontractors complies with these 
requirements. 

6. If any third party makes any claim or brings any action, suit or proceeding alleging a 
tort as now or hereafter defined in ORS 30.260 ("Third Party Claim") against State or 
Agency with respect to which the other Party may have liability, the notified Party 
must promptly notify the other Party in writing of the Third Party Claim and deliver to 
the other Party a copy of the claim, process, and all legal pleadings with respect to the 
Third Party Claim. Each Party is entitled to participate in the defense of a Third Party 
Claim, and to defend a Third Party Claim with counsel of its own choosing. Receipt by 
a Party of the notice and copies required in this paragraph and meaningful opportunity 
for the Party to participate in the investigation, defense and settlement of the Third 
Party Claim with counsel of its own choosing are conditions precedent to that Party's 
liability with respect to the Third Party Claim.  

http://www.usdoj.gov/crt/cor/coord/titlevistat.htm
http://www.usdoj.gov/crt/cor/coord/titlevistat.htm
http://academic.wsc.edu/frc/disable.html
http://www.dol.gov/esa/regs/statutes/ofccp/ada.htm
http://landru.leg.state.or.us/ors/659a.html


City of Newport / State of Oregon – Dept. of Transportation 
Agreement No. 29396 

Page 5 of 20 

7. With respect to a Third Party Claim for which State is jointly liable with Agency (or 
would be if joined in the Third Party Claim), State shall contribute to the amount of 
expenses (including attorneys' fees), judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement 
actually and reasonably incurred and paid or payable by Agency in such proportion as 
is appropriate to reflect the relative fault of State on the one hand and of Agency on 
the other hand in connection with the events which resulted in such expenses, 
judgments, fines or settlement amounts, as well as any other relevant equitable 
considerations. The relative fault of State on the one hand and of Agency on the other 
hand shall be determined by reference to, among other things, the Parties' relative 
intent, knowledge, access to information and opportunity to correct or prevent the 
circumstances resulting in such expenses, judgments, fines or settlement amounts. 
State’s contribution amount in any instance is capped to the same extent it would 
have been capped under Oregon law, including the Oregon Tort Claims Act, ORS 
30.260 to 30.300, if State had sole liability in the proceeding.  

8. With respect to a Third Party Claim for which Agency is jointly liable with State (or 
would be if joined in the Third Party Claim), Agency shall contribute to the amount of 
expenses (including attorneys' fees), judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement 
actually and reasonably incurred and paid or payable by State in such proportion as is 
appropriate to reflect the relative fault of Agency on the one hand and of State on the 
other hand in connection with the events which resulted in such expenses, judgments, 
fines or settlement amounts, as well as any other relevant equitable considerations. 
The relative fault of Agency on the one hand and of State on the other hand shall be 
determined by reference to, among other things, the Parties' relative intent, 
knowledge, access to information and opportunity to correct or prevent the 
circumstances resulting in such expenses, judgments, fines or settlement amounts. 
Agency's contribution amount in any instance is capped to the same extent it would 
have been capped under Oregon law, including the Oregon Tort Claims Act, ORS 
30.260 to 30.300, if it had sole liability in the proceeding.  

9. The Parties shall attempt in good faith to resolve any dispute arising out of this 
Agreement. In addition, the Parties may agree to utilize a jointly selected mediator or 
arbitrator (for non-binding arbitration) to resolve the dispute short of litigation.  

10. If federal funds are involved in this Agreement, “Exhibits B and C” are attached hereto 
and by this reference made a part of this Agreement, and are hereby certified to by 
Agency. 

11. If federal funds are involved in this Agreement, Agency, as a recipient of federal 
funds, pursuant to this Agreement with the State, shall assume sole liability for 
Agency’s breach of any federal statutes, rules, program requirements and grant 
provisions applicable to the federal funds, and shall, upon Agency’s breach of any 
such conditions that requires the State to return funds to the Federal Highway 
Administration, hold harmless and indemnify the State for an amount equal to the 
funds received under this Agreement; or if legal limitations apply to the indemnification 



City of Newport / State of Oregon – Dept. of Transportation 
Agreement No. 29396 

Page 6 of 20 

ability of Agency, the indemnification amount shall be the maximum amount of funds 
available for expenditure, including any available contingency funds or other available 
non-appropriated funds, up to the amount received under this Agreement. 

12. The Parties hereto agree that if any term or provision of this Agreement is declared by 
a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, unenforceable, illegal or in conflict with 
any law, the validity of the remaining terms and provisions shall not be affected, and 
the rights and obligations of the Parties shall be construed and enforced as if the 
Agreement did not contain the particular term or provision held to be invalid. 

13. This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts (facsimile or otherwise) all 
of which when taken together shall constitute one agreement binding on all Parties, 
notwithstanding that all Parties are not signatories to the same counterpart. Each 
copy of this Agreement so executed shall constitute an original. 

14. This Agreement and attached exhibits and Agreement No. 28487 constitute the entire 
agreement between the Parties on the subject matter hereof. There are no 
understandings, agreements, or representations, oral or written, not specified herein 
regarding this Agreement. No waiver, consent, modification or change of terms of this 
Agreement shall bind either Party unless in writing and signed by both Parties and all 
necessary approvals have been obtained. Such waiver, consent, modification or 
change, if made, shall be effective only in the specific instance and for the specific 
purpose given. The failure of State to enforce any provision of this Agreement shall 
not constitute a waiver by State of that or any other provision. 

THE PARTIES, by execution of this Agreement, hereby acknowledge that their signing 
representatives have read this Agreement, understand it, and agree to be bound by its 
terms and conditions. 

 

 

 

SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS 



City of Newport / State of Oregon – Dept. of Transportation 
Agreement No. 29396 

Page 7 of 20 

CITY OF NEWPORT, by and through its 
elected officials 
 
By ______________________________ 
      Mayor 
 

Date ____________________________ 

 
By ______________________________ 
      City Manager 
 

Date ____________________________ 

 
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM 
 
By 
______N/A_______________________ 
      City Legal Counsel 
 

Date ____________________________ 
 
 
Agency Contact 
Tim Gross, Director of Public Works/City 
Engineer 
City of Newport Public Works 
169 SW Coast Highway 
Newport, OR  97365 
Phone: (541) 574-3369 
Email: t.gross@newportoregon.gov 
 
State Contact 
Georgine Gleason, Sr. Right of Way Agent 
ODOT, Region 2 
455 Airport Road SE, Bldg. A 
Salem, OR  97301 
Phone: (503) 986-2604 
Email: georgine.n.gleason@odot.state.or.us

STATE OF OREGON, by and through its 
Department of Transportation 
 
By ______________________________ 
      State Right of Way Manager 
 

Date ____________________________ 

 
APPROVAL RECOMMENDED 
 
By ______________________________ 
      Region 2 Right of Way Manager 
 

Date ____________________________ 

 
By ______________________________ 
      Region 2 Manager 
 

Date ____________________________ 

 
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL 
SUFFICIENCY 
 

By _________N/A__________________ 
      Assistant Attorney General 
 

Date ____________________________ 

 
APPROVED 
(If Litigation Work Related to Condemnation is to 
be done by State) 
 

By _________N/A__________________ 
     Chief Trail Counsel 
 

Date ____________________________ 
 
 
  

mailto:t.gross@newportoregon.gov
mailto:georgine.n.gleason@odot.state.or.us


City of Newport / State of Oregon – Dept. of Transportation 
Agreement No. 29396 

Page 8 of 20 

SPECIAL PROVISIONS – EXHIBIT A 
Right of Way Services 

 
THINGS TO BE DONE BY STATE OR AGENCY 

 
1. Pursuant to this Agreement, the work performed on behalf of the Agency can be 

performed by the Agency, the Agency’s consultant, the State or a State Flex Services 
consultant. The work may be performed by Agency staff or any of these 
representatives on behalf of Agency individually or collectively provided they are 
qualified to perform such functions and after receipt of approval from the State’s 
Region 2 Right of Way Manager. Said approval must be obtained, in writing, prior to 
the performance of said activities. 

 
2. With the exception of work related to appraisals, State shall not enter into any 

subcontracts for any of the work scheduled under this Agreement without obtaining 
prior written approval from Agency. 

 
3. Both Parties will strictly follow the rules, policies and procedures of the Uniform 

Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, as 
amended, ORS Chapter 35 and the “State Right of Way Manual.” 

 
A. Preliminary Phase 
 

1. State shall provide preliminary cost estimates. 
 
2. Agency shall make preliminary contacts with property owners. 

 
3. Agency shall gather and provide data for environmental documents. 

 
4. Agency shall develop access and approach road list. 

 
5. Agency shall help provide field location and Project data. 

 
B. Acquisition Phase 
 

1. General: 
 

a. When doing the acquisition work, State shall provide Agency with a status 
report of the Project on a quarterly basis. 

 
b. Title to properties acquired shall be in the name of the State. 

 
 



 

Page 9 of 20 

2. Legal Descriptions: 
 

a. Agency shall provide sufficient horizontal control, recovery and retracement 
surveys, vesting deeds, maps, and other data so that legal descriptions can be 
written. 

 
b. Agency shall provide construction plans and cross-section information for the 

Project. 
 

c. Agency shall write legal descriptions and prepare right of way maps. If the 
Agency acquires any right of way on a State highway, the property descriptions 
and right of way maps shall be based upon centerline stationing and shall be 
prepared in accordance with the current “State Right of Way and Rail/Utility 
Coordination Manual,” “Contractor Services Guide,” and the “Right of Way 
Engineering Manual.” The preliminary and final versions of the property 
descriptions and right of way maps must be reviewed and approved by the 
State. 

 
d. State shall specify the degree of title to be acquired (e.g. fee, easement). 

 
3. Real Property and Title Insurance: 
 

a. State shall provide preliminary title reports, if State determines they are 
needed, before negotiations for acquisition commence. 

 
b. State shall determine sufficiency of title (taking subject to). If the Agency 

acquires any right of way on a State highway, sufficiency of title (taking subject 
to) shall be determined in accordance with the current “State Right of Way 
Manual,” and the “Contractor Services Guide.” Agency shall clear any 
encumbrances necessary to conform to these requirements, obtain Title 
Insurance policies as required and provide the State copies of any title policies 
for the properties acquired. 

 
c. Agency shall conduct a Level 1 Hazardous Materials Study within Project limits 

to detect presence of hazardous materials on any property purchase, 
excavation or disturbance of structures, as early in the Project design as 
possible, but at a minimum prior to property acquisition or approved design. 

 
d. Agency shall conduct a Level 2 Site Investigation of sufficient scope to confirm 

the presence of contamination, determine impacts to properties and develop 
special provisions and cost estimates, if the Level 1 Corridor Study indicates 
the potential presence of contamination that could impact the properties. 

 

 If contamination is found, a recommendation for remediation will be 
presented to State. 

 
e. Agency shall be responsible for arrangement of any necessary remediation. 



 

Page 10 of 20 

 
f. Agency shall conduct asbestos, lead paint and other hazardous materials 

surveys for all structures that will be demolished, renovated, or otherwise 
disturbed. Asbestos surveys must be conducted by an AHERA (asbestos 
hazard emergency response act) certified inspector. 

 
4. Appraisal: 
 

a. State shall conduct the valuation process of properties to be acquired. 
 

b. State shall perform the Appraisal Reviews. 
 

c. State shall recommend Just Compensation, based upon a review of the 
valuation by qualified personnel 

 
5. Negotiations: 
 

a. State shall tender all monetary offers to land-owners in writing at the 
compensation shown in the appraisal review. Conveyances taken for more or 
less than the approved Just Compensation will require a statement justifying 
the settlement. Said statement will include the consideration of any property 
trades, construction obligations and zoning or permit concessions. If State 
performs this function, it will provide the Agency with all pertinent letters, 
negotiation records and obligations incurred during the acquisition process. 

 
b. State and Agency shall determine a date for certification of right of way and 

agree to co-sign the State’s Right of Way Certification form. State and Agency 
agree possession of all right of way shall occur prior to advertising of any 
construction contract, unless appropriate exceptions have been agreed to by 
Agency and State. 

 
c. State agrees to file all Recommendations for Condemnation at least seventy 

(70) days prior to the right of way certification date if negotiations have not 
been successful on those properties. 

 
6. Relocation: 
 

a. State shall perform any relocation assistance, make replacement housing 
computations, and do all things necessary to relocate any displaced parties on 
the Project. 

 
b. State shall make all relocation and moving payments for the Project. 

 
c. State shall perform the relocation appeal process. 

 
C. Closing Phase 
 



 

Page 11 of 20 

1. State shall close all transactions. This includes drawing of deeds, releases and 
satisfactions necessary to clear title, obtaining signatures on release documents, 
and making all payments. 

 
2. State shall record conveyance documents, only upon acceptance by appropriate 

agency. 
 
D. Property Management 
 

1. State shall take possession of all the acquired properties. There shall be no 
encroachments of buildings or other private improvements allowed upon the State 
highway right of way. 

 
2. State shall dispose of all improvements and excess land. 

 
E. Condemnation 
 

1. State may offer mediation if the Parties have reached an impasse. 
 
2. State shall perform all administrative functions in preparation of the condemnation 

process, such as preparing final offer and complaint letters. 
 

3. State shall perform all legal and litigation work related to the condemnation 
process. (Therefore, prior approval evidenced by Chief Trial Counsel, Department 
of Justice, signature on this Agreement is required. Where it is contemplated that 
property will be obtained for Agency for the Project, such approval will be 
conditioned on passage of a resolution by Agency substantially in the form 
attached hereto as “Exhibit D,” and by this reference made a part hereof, 
specifically identifying the property being acquired.) 

 
4. Where State shall perform legal or litigation work related to the condemnation 

process, Agency acknowledges, agrees and undertakes to assure that no member 
of Agency’s board or council, nor Agency’s mayor, when such member or mayor is 
a practicing attorney, nor Agency’s attorney nor any member of the law firm of 
Agency’s attorney, board or council member, or mayor, will represent any party, 
except Agency, against the State of Oregon, its employees or contractors, in any 
matter arising from or related to the Project which is the subject of this Agreement. 

 
F. Transfer of Right of Way to State 
 

If applicable, Agency agrees to transfer to the State all right of way acquired on the 
State highway which was acquired in the Agency’s name. The specific method of 
conveyance will be determined by the Agency and the State at the time of transfer 
and shall be coordinated by the State’s Region Right of Way Manager. Agency 
agrees to provide the State all information and file documentation the State deems 
necessary to integrate the right of way into the State’s highway system. At a 
minimum, this includes: copies of all recorded conveyance documents used to vest 



 

Page 12 of 20 

title in the name of the Agency during the right of way acquisition process, and the 
Agency’s Final Report or Summary Report for each acquisition file that reflects the 
terms of the acquisition and all agreements with the property owner(s). 
 

G. Transfer of Right of Way to Agency 
 

If applicable, State agrees to transfer and Agency agrees to accept all right of way 
acquired on the Agency’s facility which was acquired in the State’s name. The specific 
method of conveyance will be determined by the State and the Agency at the time of 
transfer and shall be coordinated by the State’s Region Right of Way Manager. If 
requested, State agrees to provide Agency information and file documentation 
associated with the transfer. 
 



City of Newport / State of Oregon – Dept. of Transportation 
Agreement No. 29396 

Page 13 of 20 

For purposes of Exhibits B and C, references to Department shall mean STATE, references to Contractor 
shall mean Agency, and references to Contract shall mean Agreement.  
 

EXHIBIT B (Local Agency or State Agency) 
 

CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION 
 
Contractor certifies by signing this Contract that Contractor has not: 
 
 (a) Employed or retained for a commission, percentage, brokerage, contingency fee or other 

consideration, any firm or person (other than a bona fide employee working solely for me or the 
above Contractor) to solicit or secure this Contract, 

 
 (b) agreed, as an express or implied condition for obtaining this Contract, to employ or retain the 

services of any firm or person in connection with carrying out the Contract, or 
 

(c) paid or agreed to pay, to any firm, organization or person (other than a bona fide employee 
working solely for me or the above Contractor), any fee, contribution, donation or consideration 
of any kind for or in connection with, procuring or carrying out the Contract, except as here 
expressly stated (if any): 

 
Contractor further acknowledges that this certificate is to be furnished to the Federal Highway 
Administration, and is subject to applicable State and Federal laws, both criminal and civil. 
 

DEPARTMENT OFFICIAL CERTIFICATION  
 
Department official likewise certifies by signing this Contract that Contractor or his/her representative has 
not been required directly or indirectly as an expression of implied condition in connection with obtaining 
or carrying out this Contract to: 
 
 (a) Employ, retain or agree to employ or retain, any firm or person or 
 

(b) pay or agree to pay, to any firm, person or organization, any fee, contribution, donation or 
consideration of any kind except as here expressly stated (if any): 

 
Department official further acknowledges this certificate is to be furnished to the Federal Highway 
Administration, and is subject to applicable State and Federal laws, both criminal and civil. 
 
  

 
Exhibit C 

Federal Provisions 
Oregon Department of Transportation 

 
 CERTIFICATION OF NONINVOLVEMENT IN ANY DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION 
 
Contractor certifies by signing this Contract that to the best of its knowledge and belief, it and its 
principals: 
 



City of Newport / State of Oregon – Dept. of Transportation 
Agreement No. 29396 

Page 14 of 20 

 1. Are not presently debarred, suspended, 
proposed for debarment, declared 
ineligible or voluntarily excluded from 
covered transactions by any Federal 
department or agency; 

 
 2. Have not within a three-year period 

preceding this Contract been convicted of 
or had a civil judgment rendered against 
them for commission of fraud or a criminal 
offense in connection with obtaining, 
attempting to obtain or performing a public 
(federal, state or local) transaction or 
contract under a public transaction; 
violation of federal or state antitrust 
statutes or commission of embezzlement, 
theft, forgery, bribery falsification or 
destruction of records, making false 
statements or receiving stolen property; 

 
 3. Are not presently indicted for or otherwise 

criminally  or   civilly  charged  by  a 
governmental entity (federal, state or 
local) with commission of any of the 
offenses enumerated in paragraph (1)(b) 
of this certification; and 

 
4. Have not within a three-year period 

preceding this Contract had one or more 
public transactions (federal, state or 
local) terminated for cause or default.  

 
Where the Contractor is unable to certify to any 
of the statements in this certification, such 
prospective participant shall submit a written 
explanation to Department. 
 
List exceptions.  For each exception noted, 
indicate to whom the exception applies, initiating 
agency, and dates of action.  If additional space 
is required, attach another page with the 
following heading:  Certification Exceptions 
continued, Contract Insert. 
 
EXCEPTIONS: 
 
Exceptions will not necessarily result in denial of 
award, but will be considered in determining 
Contractor responsibility.  Providing false 
information may result in criminal prosecution or 
administrative sanctions. 
 

The Contractor is advised that by signing this 
Contract, the Contractor is deemed to have 
signed this certification. 
 
II. INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION 

REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, 
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS–
PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS 

 
 1. By signing this Contract, the Contractor 

is providing the certification set out 
below. 

 
 2. The inability to provide the certification 

required below will not necessarily result 
in denial of participation in this covered 
transaction.  The Contractor shall explain 
why he or she cannot provide the 
certification set out below.  This 
explanation will be considered in 
connection with the Department 
determination to enter into this 
transaction.  Failure to furnish an 
explanation shall disqualify such person 
from participation in this transaction. 

 
 3. The certification in this clause is a 

material representation of fact upon 
which reliance was placed when the 
Department determined to enter into this 
transaction.  If it is later determined that 
the Contractor knowingly rendered an 
erroneous certification, in addition to 
other remedies available to the Federal 
Government or the Department may 
terminate this transaction for cause of 
default. 

 
 4. The Contractor shall provide immediate 

written notice to the Department if at any 
time the Contractor learns that its 
certification was erroneous when 
submitted or has become erroneous by 
reason of changed circumstances. 

 
 5. The terms “covered transaction”, 

“debarred”, “suspended”, “ineligible”, 
“lower tier covered transaction”, 
“participant”, “person”, “primary covered 
transaction”, “principal”, and “voluntarily 
excluded”, as used in this clause, have 
the meanings set out in the Definitions 
and Coverage sections of the rules 
implementing Executive Order 12549.  



 

Page 15 of 20 

You may contact the Department’s 
Program Section (Tel. (503) 986-2710) to 
which this proposal is being submitted for 
assistance in obtaining a copy of those 
regulations. 

 
 6. The Contractor agrees by entering into 

this Contract that, should the proposed 
covered transaction be entered into, it 
shall not knowingly enter into any lower 
tier covered transactions with a person 
who is debarred, suspended, declared 
ineligible or voluntarily excluded from 
participation in this covered transaction, 
unless authorized by the Department or 
agency entering into this transaction. 

 
 7. The Contractor further agrees by 

entering into this Contract that it will 
include the Addendum to Form 
FHWA-1273 titled, “Appendix B—
Certification Regarding Debarment, 
Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary 
Exclusion—Lower Tier Covered 
Transactions”, provided by the 
Department entering into this covered 
transaction without modification, in all 
lower tier covered transactions and in all 
solicitations for lower tier covered 
transactions. 

 
 8. A participant in a covered transaction 

may rely upon a certification of a 
prospective participant in a lower tier 
covered transaction that it is not 
debarred, suspended, ineligible or 
voluntarily excluded from the covered 
transaction, unless it knows that the 
certification is erroneous.  A participant 
may decide the method and frequency by 
which it determines the eligibility of its 
principals.  Each participant may, but is 
not required to, check the 
Nonprocurement List published by the U. 
S. General Services Administration. 

 
9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall 

be construed to require establishment of 
a system of records to render in good 
faith the certification required by this 
clause. The knowledge and information 
of a participant is not required to exceed 
that which is normally possessed by a 
prudent person in the ordinary course of 
business dealings. 

 

10. Except for transactions authorized under 
paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a 
participant in a covered transaction 
knowingly enters into a lower tier covered 
transaction with a person who is 
suspended, debarred, ineligible or 
voluntarily excluded from participation in 
this transaction, in addition to other 
remedies available to the Federal 
Government or the Department, the 
Department may terminate this 
transaction for cause or default. 

 
III. ADDENDUM TO FORM FHWA-1273, 

REQUIRED CONTRACT PROVISIONS 
 
This certification applies to subcontractors, 
material suppliers, vendors, and other lower tier 
participants. 
 

•  Appendix B of 49 CFR Part 29 
 
Appendix B—Certification Regarding 
Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and 
Voluntary Exclusion—Lower Tier Covered 
Transactions 
 
Instructions for Certification 
 
 1. By signing and submitting this Contract, 

the prospective lower tier participant is 
providing the certification set out below. 

 
 2. The certification in this clause is a 

material representation of fact upon 
which reliance was placed when this 
transaction was entered into.  If it is later 
determined that the prospective lower tier 
participant knowingly rendered an 
erroneous certification, in addition to 
other remedies available to the Federal 
Government, the department or agency 
with which this transaction originated 
may pursue available remedies, including 
suspension and/or debarment. 

 
 3. The prospective lower tier participant 

shall provide immediate written notice to 
the person to which this Contract is 
submitted if at any time the prospective 
lower tier participant learns that its 
certification was erroneous when 
submitted or has become erroneous by 
reason of changed circumstances. 

 



 

Page 16 of 20 

 4. The terms “covered transaction”, 
“debarred”, “suspended”, “ineligible”, 
“lower tier covered transaction”, 
“participant”, “person”, “primary covered 
transaction”, “principal”, “proposal”, and 
“voluntarily excluded”, as used in this 
clause, have the meanings set out in the 
Definitions and Coverage sections of 
rules implementing Executive Order 
12549.  You may contact the person to 
which this Contract is submitted for 
assistance in obtaining a copy of those 
regulations. 

 
 5. The prospective lower tier participant 

agrees by submitting this Contract that, 
should the proposed covered transaction 
be entered into, it shall not knowingly 
enter into any lower tier covered 
transaction with a person who is 
debarred, suspended, declared ineligible 
or voluntarily excluded from participation 
in this covered transaction, unless 
authorized by the department or agency 
with which this transaction originated. 

 
 6. The prospective lower tier participant 

further agrees by submitting this Contract 
that it will include this clause titled, 
“Certification Regarding Debarment, 
Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary 
Exclusion—Lower Tier Covered 
Transaction”, without modification, in all 
lower tier covered transactions and in all 
solicitations for lower tier covered 
transactions. 

 
 7. A participant in a covered transaction 

may rely upon a certification of a 
prospective participant in a lower tier 
covered transaction that it is not 
debarred, suspended, ineligible or 
voluntarily  excluded  from  the   covered 
transaction, unless it knows that the 
certification is erroneous.  A participant 
may decide the method and frequency by 
which it determines the eligibility of its 
principals.  Each participant may, but is 
not required to, check the 
nonprocurement list. 

 
 8. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall 

be construed to require establishment of 
a system of records to render in good 
faith the certification required by this 
clause. The knowledge and information 

of a participant is not required to exceed 
that which is normally possessed by a 
prudent person in the ordinary course of 
business dealings. 

 
 9. Except for transactions authorized under 

paragraph 5 of these instructions, if a 
participant in a covered transaction 
knowingly enters into a lower tier covered 
transaction with a person who is 
suspended, debarred, ineligible or 
voluntarily excluded   from participation in 
this transaction, in addition to other 
remedies available to the Federal 
Government, the department or agency 
with which this transaction originated 
may pursue available remedies, including 
suspension and/or debarment. 

 
Certification Regarding Debarment, 
Suspension, Ineligibility, and Voluntary 
Exclusion—Lower Tier Covered 
Transactions 
 

  a. The prospective lower tier participant 
certifies, by entering into this 
Contract, that neither it nor its 
principals is presently debarred, 
suspended, proposed for debarment, 
declared ineligible or voluntarily 
excluded from participation in this 
transaction by any Federal 
department or agency. 

 
  b. Where the prospective lower tier 

participant is unable to certify to any 
of the statements in this certification, 
such prospective participant shall 
submit a written explanation to 
Department. 

 
IV. EMPLOYMENT 
 
 1. Contractor warrants that he has not 

employed or retained any company or 
person, other than a bona fide employee 
working solely for Contractor, to solicit or 
secure this Contract and that he has not 
paid or agreed to pay any company or 
person, other than a bona fide employee 
working solely for Contractors, any fee, 
commission, percentage, brokerage fee, 
gifts or any other consideration 
contingent upon or resulting from the 
award or making of this Contract.  For 
breach or violation of this warranting, 



 

Page 17 of 20 

Department shall have the right to annul 
this Contract without liability or in its 
discretion to deduct from the Contract 
price or consideration or otherwise 
recover, the full amount of such fee, 
commission, percentage, brokerage fee, 
gift or contingent fee. 

 
 2. Contractor shall not engage, on a full or 

part-time basis or other basis, during the 
period of the Contract, any professional 
or technical personnel who are or have 
been at any time during the period of this 
Contract, in the employ of Department, 
except regularly retired employees, 
without written consent of the public 
employer of such person. 

 
 3. Contractor agrees to perform consulting 

services with that standard of care, skill 
and diligence normally provided by a 
professional in the performance of such 
consulting services on work similar to 
that hereunder.  Department shall be 
entitled to rely on the accuracy, 
competence, and completeness of 
Contractor’s services.  

 
V. NONDISCRIMINATION 
 
 During the performance of this Contract, 

Contractor, for himself, his assignees and 
successors in interest, hereinafter referred to 
as Contractor, agrees as follows: 
 

 1. Compliance with Regulations.  
Contractor agrees to comply with Title VI 
of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, and 
Section 162(a) of the Federal-Aid 
Highway Act of 1973 and the Civil Rights 
Restoration Act of 1987. Contractor shall 
comply with the regulations of the 
Department of Transportation relative to 
nondiscrimination in Federally assisted 
programs of the Department of 
Transportation, Title 49, Code of Federal 
Regulations, Part 21, as they may be 
amended from time to time (hereinafter 
referred to as the Regulations), which are 
incorporated by reference and made a 
part of this Contract.  Contractor, with 
regard to the work performed after award 
and prior to completion  of  the  Contract  
work, shall not discriminate on grounds 
of race, creed, color, sex or national 
origin in the selection and retention of 

subcontractors, including procurement of 
materials and leases of equipment.  
Contractor shall not participate either 
directly or indirectly in the discrimination 
prohibited by Section 21.5 of the 
Regulations, including employment 
practices, when the Contract covers a 
program set forth in Appendix B of the 
Regulations. 

 
 2. Solicitation for Subcontractors, including 

Procurement of Materials and 
Equipment. In all solicitations, either by 
competitive bidding or negotiations made 
by Contractor for work to be performed 
under a subcontract,  including  
procurement  of materials  and 
equipment, each potential subcontractor 
or supplier shall be notified by Contractor 
of Contractor’s obligations under this 
Contract and regulations relative to 
nondiscrimination on the grounds of race, 
creed, color, sex or national origin. 

 
 3. Nondiscrimination in Employment (Title 

VII of the 1964 Civil Rights Act).  During 
the performance of this Contract, 
Contractor agrees as follows: 

 
  a. Contractor will not discriminate 

against any employee or applicant 
for employment because of race, 
creed, color, sex or national origin. 
Contractor will take affirmative action 
to ensure that applicants are 
employed, and that employees are 
treated during employment, without 
regard to their race, creed, color, sex 
or national origin.  Such action shall 
include, but not be limited to the 
following: employment, upgrading, 
demotion or transfer; recruitment or 
recruitment advertising; layoff or 
termination; rates of pay or other 
forms of compensation; and 
selection for training, including 
apprenticeship.  Contractor agrees to 
post in conspicuous places, available 
to employees and applicants for 
employment, notice setting forth the 
provisions of this nondiscrimination 
clause. 

 
  b. Contractor will, in all solicitations or 

advertisements for employees 
placed by or on behalf of Contractor, 



 

Page 18 of 20 

state that all qualified applicants will 
receive consideration for 
employment without regard to race, 
creed, color, sex or national origin. 

 
 4. Information and Reports.  Contractor will 

provide all information and reports 
required by the Regulations or orders 
and instructions issued pursuant thereto, 
and will permit access to his books, 
records, accounts, other sources of 
information, and his facilities as may be 
determined by Department or FHWA as 
appropriate, and shall set forth what 
efforts he has made to obtain the 
information. 

 
 5. Sanctions for Noncompliance.  In the 

event of Contractor’s noncompliance with 
the nondiscrimination provisions of the 
Contract, Department shall impose such 
agreement sanctions as it or the FHWA 
may determine to be appropriate, 
including, but not limited to: 

 
a. Withholding of payments to 

Contractor under the agreement until 
Contractor complies; and/or 

 
b. Cancellation, termination or 

suspension of the agreement in whole 
or in part. 

 
6. Incorporation of Provisions.  Contractor 

will include the provisions of paragraphs 
1 through 6 of this section in every 
subcontract, including procurement of 
materials and leases of equipment, 
unless exempt from Regulations, orders 
or instructions issued pursuant thereto. 
Contractor shall take such action with 
respect to any subcontractor or 
procurement as Department or FHWA 
may direct as a means of enforcing such 
provisions, including sanctions for 
noncompliance; provided, however, that 
in the event Contractor becomes 
involved in or is threatened with litigation 
with a subcontractor or supplier as a 
result of such direction, Department may, 
at its option, enter into such litigation to 
protect the interests of Department, and, 
in addition, Contractor may request 
Department to enter into such litigation to 
protect the interests of the State of 
Oregon. 

 
VI. DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS  

 ENTERPRISE (DBE) POLICY 
  
 In accordance with Title 49, Code of Federal 

Regulations, Part 26, Contractor shall agree 
to abide by and take all necessary and 
reasonable steps to comply with the 
following statement: 

 
DBE POLICY STATEMENT 

 
 DBE Policy.   It is the policy of the United 

States  Department of Transportation 
(USDOT)  to practice nondiscrimination on 
the basis of race, color, sex and/or national 
origin in the award and administration of 
USDOT assist contracts.  Consequently, the 
DBE requirements of 49 CFR 26 apply to 
this Contract. 

 
 Required Statement For USDOT Financial 

Assistance Agreement. If as a condition of 
assistance the Agency has submitted and 
the US Department of Transportation has 
approved a Disadvantaged Business 
Enterprise Affirmative Action Program which 
the Agency agrees to carry out, this 
affirmative action program is incorporated 
into the financial assistance agreement by 
reference. 

  
 DBE Obligations.   The Department and its 

Contractor agree to ensure that 
Disadvantaged Business Enterprises as 
defined in 49 CFR 26 have the opportunity 
to participate in the performance of 
contracts and subcontracts financed in 
whole or in part with Federal funds.   In  this 
regard, Contractor  shall take all necessary  
and  reasonable  steps  in accordance  with  
49 CFR 26  to  ensure  that Disadvantaged   
Business Enterprises have the opportunity 
to compete for and perform contracts.  
Neither Department nor its contractors shall 
discriminate on the basis of race, color, 
national origin or sex in the award and 
performance of federally-assisted contracts.  
The Contractor shall carry out applicable 
requirements of 49 CFR Part 26 in the 
award and administration of such contracts.  
Failure by the Contractor to carry out these 
requirements is a material breach of this 
Contract, which may result in the termination 
of this Contract or such other remedy as 
Department deems appropriate. 



 

Page 19 of 20 

  
 The DBE Policy Statement and Obligations 

shall be included in all subcontracts entered 
into under this Contract. 

 
 Records and Reports. Contractor shall 

provide monthly documentation to 
Department that it is subcontracting with or 
purchasing materials from the DBEs 
identified   to meet Contract goals. 
Contractor shall notify Department and 
obtain its written approval before replacing a 
DBE or making any change in the DBE 
participation listed.  If a DBE is unable to 
fulfill the original obligation to the Contract, 
Contractor must demonstrate to Department 
the Affirmative Action steps taken to replace 
the DBE with another DBE. Failure to do so 
will result in withholding payment on those 
items.  The monthly documentation will not 
be required after the DBE goal commitment 
is satisfactory to Department. 

 
 Any DBE participation attained after the 

DBE goal has been satisfied should be 
reported to the Departments. 

 
 DBE Definition. Only firms DBE 
certified by the State of Oregon, 
Department of Consumer & Business 
Services, Office of Minority, Women & 
Emerging Small Business, may be utilized 
to satisfy this obligation. 

 
CONTRACTOR’S DBE CONTRACT GOAL 

 
DBE GOAL         0       % 

 
 By signing this Contract, Contractor assures 

that good faith efforts have been made to 
meet the goal for the DBE participation 
specified in the Contract for this project as 
required by ORS 200.045, and 49 CFR 
26.53 and 49 CFR, Part 26, Appendix A. 

 
VII. LOBBYING 
 
 The Contractor certifies, by signing this 

agreement to the best of his or her 
knowledge and belief, that: 
 

1. No Federal appropriated funds have 
been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf 
of the undersigned, to any person for 
influencing or attempting to influence an 
officer or employee of any Federal 

agency, a Member of Congress, an 
officer or employee of Congress or an 
employee of a Member of Congress in 
connection with the awarding of any 
Federal contract, the making of any 
Federal grant, the making of any Federal 
loan, the entering into of any cooperative 
agreement, and the extension, 
continuation, renewal, amendment or 
modification of any Federal contract, 
grant, loan or cooperative agreement. 

 
2. If any funds other than Federal 

appropriated funds have been paid or will 
be paid to any person for influencing or 
attempting to influence an officer or 
employee of any Federal agency, a 
Member of Congress, an officer or 
employee of Congress or an employee of 
a Member of Congress in connection 
with this agreement, the undersigned 
shall complete and submit Standard 
Form-LLL, “Disclosure Form to Report 
Lobbying”, in accordance with its 
instructions. 

 
 This certification is a material representation 

of fact upon which reliance was placed when 
this transaction was made or entered into.  
Submission of this certification is a 
prerequisite for making or entering into this 
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 
31, U. S. Code.  Any person who fails to file 
the required certification shall be subject to a 
civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not 
more than $100,000 for each such failure. 

 
 The Contractor also agrees by signing this 

agreement that he or she shall require that 
the language of this certification be included 
in all lower tier subagreements, which 
exceed $100,000 and that all such 
subrecipients shall certify and disclose 
accordingly. 

 
FOR INQUIRY CONCERNING 
DEPARTMENT’S DBE PROGRAM 
REQUIREMENT CONTACT OFFICE OF 
CIVIL RIGHTS AT (503)986-4354. 

 
 



City of Newport / State of Oregon – Dept. of Transportation 
Agreement No. 29396 

Page 20 of 20 

EXHIBIT D 
RESOLUTION EXERCISING THE POWER OF EMINENT DOMAIN 

Right of Way Services 
 

WHEREAS (insert title of Agency) may exercise the power of eminent domain pursuant to 
(Agency’s charter) (statutes conferring authority) and the Law of the State of Oregon generally, 
when the exercise of such power is deemed necessary by the (insert title of Agency)’s governing 
body to accomplish public purposes for which (insert title of Agency) has responsibility; 
 
WHEREAS (insert title of Agency) has the responsibility of providing safe transportation routes for 
commerce, convenience and to adequately serve the traveling public; 
 
WHEREAS the project or projects known as (insert Project name) have been planned in 
accordance with appropriate engineering standards for the construction, maintenance or 
improvement of said transportation infrastructure such that property damage is minimized, 
transportation promoted, travel safeguarded; and 
 
WHEREAS to accomplish the project or projects set forth above it is necessary to acquire the 
interests in the property described in “Exhibit A,” attached to this resolution and, by this reference 
incorporated herein; now, therefore 
 
BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by (Agency’s Council, Commission, or Board) 
 
1. The foregoing statements of authority and need are, in fact, the case. The project or projects 

for which the property is required and is being acquired are necessary in the public interest, 
and the same have been planned, designed, located, and will be constructed in a manner 
which will be most compatible with the greatest public good and the least private injury; 

 
2. The power of eminent domain is hereby exercised with respect to each of the interests in 

property described in Exhibit A. Each is acquired subject to payment of just compensation 
and subject to procedural requirements of Oregon law; 

 
3. The (insert title of Agency)’s staff and the (Agency’s Attorney, Counsel, or District’s Counsel 

(or) (The Oregon Department of Transportation and the Attorney General) are authorized and 
requested to attempt to agree with the owner and other persons in interest as to the 
compensation to be paid for each acquisition, and, in the event that no satisfactory agreement 
can be reached, to commence and prosecute such condemnation proceedings as may be 
necessary to finally determine just compensation or any other issue appropriate to be 
determined by a court in connection with the acquisition. This authorization is not intended to 
expand the jurisdiction of any court to decide matters determined above or determinable by 
the (Agency’s Council, Commission, or Board). 

 
4. (Insert title of Agency) expressly reserves its jurisdiction to determine the necessity or 

propriety of any acquisition, its quantity, quality, or locality, and to change or abandon any 
acquisition. 

 
DATED this ________ day of __________________________, 20___. 



 Agenda Item # VII.C 
 Meeting Date February 3, 2014  
 

 
 

 CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 
City Of Newport, Oregon 

 
Issue/Agenda Title: Response to the Bicycle/Pedestrian Advisory Committee Regarding Project Priorities. 
 
Prepared By: City Manager, Spencer Nebel 
 
Issue Before the Council: Approval of a response to the Bicycle/Pedestrian Advisory Committee from 
the December 16, 2013 City Council work session. 
 
Proposed Motion: I move to direct city administration to review the Bicycle/Pedestrian Advisory 
Committee recommendations as part of the upcoming budget process in accordance with the report 
from the City Manager which includes proposing funding for sharrows in FY 2014-15 at similar levels to 
the current fiscal year and conducting feasibility studies on the remaining projects by January 2015 for 
possible incorporation in the 2015-16 budget or later fiscal years. 
 
Key Facts and Information Summary: On December 16, 2013, the Bicycle/Pedestrian Advisory 
Committee presented various priorities for improvements to the City’s bicycle and pedestrian systems 
to the City Council. In accordance with City ordinance, the bicycle pedestrian committee advises the 
City Council regarding issues on bicycle and pedestrian transportation, safety, recreation, and 
education.  
 
In accordance with these responsibilities, the committee presented four priorities for review by the City 
Council. The first was continuation of shared lane markings or “sharrows” on city streets. The second 
priority was a trail from NW Park Street to Oceanview Drive. Since there are no shoulders on Oceanview 
Drive between NW 21st street and NW 12th street this creates unsafe travel for bicycles and pedestrians 
through the curves. The third priority was a trail connecting Agate Beach State Park Trail to the sidewalk 
on Highway 101 W. At this point pedestrians traveling North and South between Little Creek Apartments 
and the shopping district apparently have no choice but to walk on the shoulder of Highway 101 or cross 
the Highway 101 to access the sidewalk. The committee is recommending that the city pursue extension 
of the trail to connect to the existing sidewalk where it ends at the driveway of the Best Western. The 
fourth priority was installation of sidewalks on Abbey Street to the Bayfront to address the curves and 
steep slopes at this location. 
 
At the December 16, 2013 work session, I recommended that the Council refer this matter back to staff 
with a report to be provided to the City Council at the first meeting in February as to how we may be 
able to proceed with the specific recommendations. 
 
As you are aware the City has focused on many pedestrian and bicycle improvements in recent years 
including the ADA accessible sidewalks along Naterlin Drive; sidewalk connections to Yaquina Bay 
State Park under the north end of the Yaquina Bay Bridge; the completion of many missing sidewalk 
connections including those along SE 9th at City Hall, NE 3rd along the Lincoln County Fairgrounds, and 



on NW Nye Street along Betty Wheeler Field; and the installation of sharrows on 6th Street from NW 
Coast Street to NE Eads and along Oceanview Drive from Hwy 101 to NW Coast Street. 
 
 
 
The City has also developed various plans that are included in the Transportation System Plan (TSP) 
which lays out recommended bicycle routes and sidewalk connections for the City of Newport. If 
priorities change relating to the TSP, it is appropriate to consider amending this plan to reflect these 
changes from time to time. Please make note that a number of the priorities are currently included and 
the TSP. 
 
In addition, the City has a number of current projects in place relating to pedestrian and bicycle safety. 
Perhaps the most significant project is the pedestrian crossings of Highway 101. This project has been 
designed through Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT), as a result of the design there have 
been significant revisions creating an increase on the cost of completing this project. Staff is working 
with ODOT to identify additional funds from ODOT in order to make this project move forward. In 
addition, it is likely that the City will have to identify and commit additional resources in order for this 
project to move forward as well. We will be reporting on this issue in the near future to the City Council 
once we have completed our discussions with ODOT. 
 
In the current fiscal year, funds were appropriated for share roads with 38 sharrows currently having 
been installed by DPW crews with funds that were appropriated specifically for this project in 2013-
2014 fiscal year. 
 
Staff Recommendations: City staff has reviewed the priorities and offers the following recommendations 
to the City Council as a response to the Bicycle/Pedestrian Advisory Committee recommendations. 
First of all, it would be our recommendation that funds be appropriated in the upcoming budget to 
continue with the sharrow program. Each sharrow costs approximately $300 in materials and we are 
recommending that the City annually budget funds to continue the sharrow program. By expanding the 
system on an annual basis, it will make the sustainability of maintaining these sharrows more feasible. 
As with any pavement markings, there is a limited life and at some point sharrows will need to be 
replaced. This would create a situation where annually sharrows would be installed and ultimately 
replaced on a scheduled basis in the future. The sustainability of this program is important for its long-
term viability as a way to identify shared routes for the purposes of both bicycles and motorists. 
 
In reviewing the three project priorities, it is my recommendation that the City Council requests city 
administration to conduct a preliminary feasibility/design cost for proceeding with these three projects 
with in-house staff with the report being completed in January of 2015. This will enable us to have 
specific information to consider at budget time as various projects are identified for funding in that fiscal 
year. Once these costs and feasibilities of the projects are identified this information will be shared with 
the Bicycle/Pedestrian Advisory Committee to provide them with information in which they can provide 
any further recommendations to the City Council for the preparation of the 2015-2016 budget. 
 
The Bicycle/Pedestrian Advisory Committee can play an important role in identifying various priorities 
and sharing that information with the City Council to help the Council weigh these priorities with other 
priorities for financing various parts of the City’s operation as part of the appropriations process. In any 



cases where projects have been identified that are not part of the TSP, it is important to include those 
projects in a future update of the TSP.  
 
I appreciate the efforts of the advisory committee to identify priorities from their perspective for 
consideration in this process. I am hopeful that once this format is put into place, both the 
Bicycle/Pedestrian Committee and the City Council will be able to proceed in an effective manner in 
order to continue improving pedestrian and bicycle safety access throughout the City of Newport. 
 
Other Alternatives Considered: As part of the budget review process, the Council could modify any 
proposed recommendations for capital outlay expenses, for the 2014 – 2015 fiscal year, to either 
include or exclude any of these priorities. 
 
City Council Goals:  
Continue to support multi-modal forms of transportation in the City of Newport. 
Designate and develop pedestrian and bicycle routes in association with streets, and work with the 
school district to create safe routes to schools.  
 
Attachment List:  
The Bicycle/Pedestrian Advisory Committee PowerPoint from December 16, 2013, City Council work 
session. 
 
Fiscal Notes: This work would be done with internal staff so no additional appropriations would be 
necessary. 



 



 CC.VII.E 

1 
 

Revised 1/23/14 

CITY OF NEWPORT 

Budget Calendar - Detailed 

For Fiscal Year 2014-15 

 

Preliminary Budget Worksheets (City and NURA) 

 Distributed to Department Heads ………………………………………….Friday, January 24, 2014 

 

 Preliminary Detail Worksheets – (Keep to develop budget) 

 Personnel Forms …………………………Return to Finance by February 7, 2014 

 Capital Outlay  

  Equipment ($1,000) and up) …. Return to Finance by February 14, 2014 

  Projects …………………………………Return to Finance by February 21, 2014 

 

Goal Setting Meeting with City Council and Department Heads …………Monday, February 24, 2014 

 

Department Heads’ Group Meeting on Capital Outlay (Projects & Equipment) 

 Review of Requests and Prioritizing Projects..……………………...Wednesday, February 26, 2014 

 

Final Budget Worksheets for Proposed Budgets with 

 Eight-Month Actuals through February 2014 ………....................................Monday, March 3, 2014  

 

Submit Department Proposed Budgets and Narratives to Finance……………Monday, March 10, 2014 

 

Preliminary Meeting of the Budget Committee……………………………..Wednesday, March 12, 2014 

 

Finance Completes Department Budget Requests Process and  

 Makes Final Requests Available ………………………………….March 17 and/or March 18, 2014 

 

Department Heads’ Meetings with Budget Officer to Review, Revise 

 and Balance Budgets (City and NURA) ……….…Wednesday, March 19 through March 21, 2014 

 

Publish First Notice of Budget Committee Meetings (City and NURA) ………….Friday, April 4, 2014 

 

Budget Officer Completes Budget Message ……………………………………….Friday, April 11, 2014 

 

Completed Proposed to Printer …………………………………………………..Monday, April 14, 2014 

 

Publish Second Notice of Budget Committee Meetings (City & NURA) …..Wednesday, April 16, 2014 

 

Distribute Proposed Budgets to Budget Committee & Department Heads ……...Friday, April 18, 2014 

 

 



 CC.VII.E 

2 
 

 

First Budget Committee Meeting ……………………………………………...Wednesday, April 30, 2014 

 

 Appoint/Elect Presiding Officer 

 Receive City and NURA Budgets and Budget Message 

 Public Hearing on Possible Uses of State Shared Revenues 

 Review Budget Documents and Discuss Relevant changes 

 Respond to Questions from the Budget Committee 

 Provides for Members of the Public time for Input, Questions and Comments 

 Present Report on Financial Policy of UEFBs and Contingencies 

 

Second Budget Committee Meeting ………………………………………………...Wednesday, May 7, 2014 

 

 Budget Committee Deliberations 

 Respond to Questions from First Meeting 

 

Third Budget Committee Meeting …………………………………………………Wednesday, May 14, 2014 

 

 Respond to Questions from Second Meeting 

 Budget Committee approval of the Budget Documents (City and NURA) 

 Approval of Ad Valorem Property Tax Amount or Rate for City General Fund 

  and City Debt Service Funds and the NURA 

 

Department Revised Narratives Based on Budget Committee Deliberations 

to Budget Officer & Finance Director ………………………………………..Tuesday, May 20, 2014 

 

Publish Notice of Budget Hearing (only once required) ……………………………….Friday. June 6, 2014 

 

 Publish Financial Summaries (separate City and NURA) 

 

Budget Public Hearing ………………………………………………………………...Monday, June 16, 2014 

 Public Hearing on Proposed Uses of State shared Revenues 

 Separate Public Hearings on City Budget and NURA Budget 

Adopt Budgets and Make Appropriations (City and NURA) 

Impose and Categorize Taxes for City and NURA 

Transmit Tax Certification Documents ..……………………………………………………..…July 15, 2014 

 To County Assessor by July 15, 2014 

 File Budget Document with County Recorder and Designated Agencies. 


	CC CITY COUNCIL AGENDA-2-3-14
	CC1 City Manager's Report CITY COUNCIL AGENDA-2-3-14
	CC.IV.A1 January 21, 2014
	CC.IV.A2 January 21, 2014-Minutes
	CC.IV.A3 January 15 2014 - Joint Meeting with County Commissioners
	CC.IV.B1&2 Mayoral Committee Appointments
	CC.V.A.1 CAI Summary - Ord No. 2062
	CC.V.A2 Ordinance No. 2062 - Amending Ord 1922, as amended by Ord 1931 - Final
	CC.V.A3 ord_1931
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10
	Page 11
	Page 12
	Page 13
	Page 14
	Page 15
	Page 16
	Page 17
	Page 18

	CC.V.A4 ord_2045
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8

	CC.VI.A Salmon for Oregon Information
	CC.VII.A Compostables Schedule
	CC.VII.B1 Staff Report RE ODOT IGA for ROW Services 2-3-14
	CC.VII.B2 FINAL29396_US101PedSafetyImprov(Newport)JB2
	CC.VII.C Summary Report Bike-Ped Recommendations TEG EDITS
	CC.VII.E Budget Calendar -Detailed for FY 2014-15 Revised 1.23.14



